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BlackRock Fund Management Company
S.A.
2019 17
BlackRock Asset Management Ireland
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2019 17
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
2019 17
State Street Bank International GmbH,
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1997 10 13
2002 29
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1998 15
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2016 18
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Limited
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www .blackrock.com/corporate/sustainability
https://www.blackrock.com/corporate/about-us/investment-stewardship#our-responsibility
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2025
397,260,133 14.03
237,428,496 8.39
199,013,443 7.03
154,067,346 5.44
138,178,993 4.88
119,445,434 4.22
1,245,393,845 43.99
62,000,000 2.19
62,000,000 2.19
174,675,018 6.17
174,675,018 6.17
1,482,068,863 52.35
1,349,239,848 47.65
ne 0T
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2025
2025
EXEEPEAN INVESTMENT 17 [65.000,000.00 [0.99 [54,381,083.33 0.99 [54,705,343.75 | 1.93
2025
ERSTE 50,000,000.00 0.99 49,743 ,675.00 [1.00 [49,981,925.00 | 1.77
ABWICKLUNGSANSTALT -000,000.00 {0. -743,675.00 11 -981,925. -
2025
KOREA DEVELOPMENT 11 135 000,000.00 1.00 32,000,000.00 |1.00 [32,000,000.00 | 1.13
BANK 13
2025
GOVERNMENT OF 31,800,000.00 0.99 [31,455,959.33 [1.00 [31,800,000.00 | 1.12
CANADA
2025
KOREA DEVELOPMENT 10 135.000,000.00 100 [30,000,000.00 [1.00 |30,000,000.00 | 1.06
BANK 24
2025
ERSTE 30,000,000.00 0.99 [29,668,800.00 [1.00 [29,996,400.00 | 1.06
ABWICKLUNGSANSTALT -000,000.00 {0. ,668,800.00 1. ,996,400. :
CAISSE D~ 2025
AMORTISSEMENT DE LA 30,000,000.00 0.99 |29,669,183.33 [1.00 [29,989,212.50 | 1.06
DETTE SOCIALE
2025
DETTE SOCIALE 30.,000,000.00 0.99 [29,643,600.00 [1.00 [29,989,200.00 | 1.06
2025
EXPORT DEVELOPMENT
o 11 [0+000,000.00 [0..98 [29,365,750.00 [1..00 [29,967,750.00 | 1.06
2025
CAISSE DES DEPOTS
10 | 8 o AT Ton 15 [30+000,000.00 [0.99 [29,570,112.50 [1..00 [29,963,875.00 | 1.06
2025
11 | NRW BANK 16 [30+000,000.00 [0.99 [29,650,800.00 [1..00 [29,949,600.00 | 1.06
2025
12 | DEXIA SA 16 [30+000,000.00 0.99 [29,780,000.00 [1.00 [29,948,666.67 | 1.06
2026
UNITED STATES
13 | e e 15 [30+000,000.00 [1.00 [29,905,078.13 [1.00 [29,936,438.75 | 1.06
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2025
14 ERSTE 30,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,666,750.00 |1.00 [29,935,500.00 | 1.06
ABWICKLUNGSANSTALT 207 ) T ) TTET T ’
2025
15 | NRW BANK 20 30,000,000.00 |0.99 [29,661,991.67 |1.00 [29,935,275.00 | 1.06
2025
16 ERSTE 30,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,670,333.33 |1.00 [29,917,583.33 | 1.06
ABWICKLUNGSANSTALT 25 7T ) T ) T ’
2025
17 | DEXIA SA o5 30,000,000.00 10.99 |29,772,925.00 |1.00 [29,915,762.50 | 1.06
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2025
OESTERREICH
18 | et 30,000,000.00 [0.99 [29,756,333.33 [1.00 [29,892,500.00 | 1.06
19 | KFW INTERNATIONAL 202 30,000,000.00 [0.99 [29,659,200.00 |1.00 [29,872,200.00 | 1.06
FINANCE INC ,000,000.00 [0. ,659,200.00 |1. ,872,200. )
2025
NEDERLANDSE
20 | Ak 23[30,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,675,433.33 [0.99 |9,818,100.00 | 1.05
21 | CAISSE DES DEPOTS 20252330 000,000.00 [0.99 [29,553,645.83 [0.99 [29,817,887.50 | 1.05
ET CONSIGNATIONS -000,000.00 0. »953,645.83 0. 817,887 .
2025
NEDERLANDSE
22 | Ak 2430,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,674,295.83 [0.99 |9,813,883.33 | 1.05
2025
23 | PSP CAPITAL INC 25{30,000,000.00 [0.98 |29,366,041.67 [0.99 |29,812,201.67 | 1.05
2025
NEDERLANDSE
24 | Ak 29|30,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,676,750.00 [0.99 |9,795,275.00 | 1.05
KOREA DEVELOPMENT 2025
25 | o 28[30,000,000.00 [0.98 |29,443,933.33 [0.99 |29,795,133.33 | 1.05
2025
NEDERLANDSE
26 | K 31[30,000,000.00 [0.99 |29,666,362.50 [0.99 |29,788,337.50 | 1.05
2025
CAISSE DES DEPOTS
27 | £ oNSIohT On 30,000,000.00 [0.99 [29,663,558.33 [0.99 [29,774,512.50 | 1.05
2g | KFW INTERNATIONAL c0%0 30,000,000.00 [0.99 [29,669,566.67 0.99 [29,759,358.34 | 1.05
FINANCE INC -000,000.00 10. -669,566.67 10. +759,358. .
EXPORT 2025
29 | DEVELOPMENT 13]30,000,000.00 0.98 [29,397,233.33 |0.99 |29,743,200.00 | 1.05
CANADA
2025
UNITED STATES
30 | Jercury BILL 21/30,000,000.00 [0.98 [29,359,587.50 [0.99 [29,718,500.00 | 1.05
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2025

2025
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10 2025
26 1,322,727 190,301 1.00 144
2016 1.00 144
27 1,337,664 192,450 1.00 144
2017 1.00 144
28 1,386,833 199,524 1.00 144
2018 1.00 144
29 1,475,431 212,270 1.00 144
2019 1.00 144
30 2,368,874 340,810 1.00 144
2020 1.00 144
31 2,478,867 356,635 1.00 144
2021 1.00 144
32 2,270,581 326,668 1.00 144
2022 1.00 144
33 1,769,360 254,558 1.00 144
2023 1.00 144
34 2,512,067 361,411 1.00 144
2024 1.00 144
35 2,932,502 421,899 1.00 144
2025 1.00 144
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2024 2,882,339 414,682 1.00 144
1.00 144

3,003,102 432,056 1.00 144

1.00 144

2,967,275 426,902 1.00 144

1.00 144

2,979,399 428,646 1.00 144

1.00 144

10 2,883,416 414,837 1.00 144
1.00 144

11 2,939,987 422,976 1.00 144
1.00 144

12 2,903,300 417,698 1.00 144
1.00 144

2025 2,932,502 421,899 1.00 144
1.00 144

2,951,938 424,695 1.00 144

1.00 144

2,886,020 415,212 1.00 144

1.00 144

2,817,729 405,387 1.00 144

1.00 144

2,831,309 407,340 1.00 144

1.00 144

48/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

A VAT AT 21—V 3 SRS

2015 2025 2015 2025
2015 2015
10
26 0.00151403 0.00151403
27 0.00504150 0.00504150
28 0.00844963 0.00844963
29 0.01704779 0.01704779
30 0.01722739 0.01752192
31 0.00213405 0.00230888
32 0.00052128 0.00052128
33 0.01581727 0.01622134
34 0.04673163 0.04723582
35 0.04609100 0.04659100
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95 2ABS %

2024 2025
10
26 0.15 0.15
27 0.50 0.50
28 0.84 0.84
29 1.70 1.70
30 1.72 1.75
31 0.21 0.23
32 0.05 0.05
33 1.58 1.62
34 4.67 4.72
35 4.61 4.66

100x%
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BEI A VAT 4T a—ar LIS

2025
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10

26 1,706,244,816 1,837,931,999 816,280,045
1,704,735,993 1,833,747,468 796,737,943

1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,402

1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,402

27 981,224,754 995,227,073 802,277,726
967,601,973 976,651,830 787,688,086

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,421

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,421

28 945,457,833 831,548,152 916,187,407
941,975,965 825,208,225 904,455,826

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,466

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,466

29 1,839,298,837 1,765,762,901 989,723,343
1,835,498,803 1,750,889,247 989,065,381

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

30 3,044,445,491 2,358,017,391 1,676,151,443
3,016,177,694 2,338,566,252 1,666,676,823

750,374,801 543,366,007 692,354,707

750,374,801 543,366,007 692,354,707

31 2,428,380,961 2,494,792,750 1,609,739,654
2,425,461,180 2,485,364,112 1,606,773,892

1,220,466,775 1,044,062,789 868,758,693

1,220,466,775 1,044,062,789 868,758,693
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32 1,970,075,632 2,153,571,123 1,426,244,163
1,970,036,273 2,153,494,853 1,423,315,312

971,152,503 995,944,017 843,967,179

971,152,503 995,944,017 843,967,179

33 1,942,537,350 2,127,271,840 1,241,509,673
1,942,537,350 2,127,271,840 1,238,580,822

743,565,867 1,060,058,190 527,474,856

743,565,867 1,060,058,190 527,474,856

34 3,204,784,012 2,595,955,437 1,850,338,248
3,129,634,958 2,517,877,532 1,850,338,248

1,029,276,279 941,550,382 615,200,753

1,029,276,279 941,550,382 615,200,753

35 4,786,478,503 4,403,032,609 2,233,784,142
4,786,478,503 4,403,032,609 2,233,784,142

719,407,210 739,229,440 595,378,523

719,407,210 739,229,440 595,378,523

34
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0.01 250,000
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12

12
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http://www.blackrockinternational .com/
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328

2025 30
143.87

23 103

23
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2025 31

2025 31
2,893,939,158 416,351,027
2(a) 2,893,939,158 416,351,027
2(a) 57,700,428 8,301,361
2(a) 1,568,679 225,686
2(a) 1,433,000,000 206,165,710
2(a) 36,157 5,202
4,386,244,422 631,048,985
2(a) 1,435,655,558 206,547,765
2(a) 10,691,916 1,538,246

2
(2).4.5.6.,7.8 7,394,894 1,063,903
1,453,742,368 209,149,914
2,932,502,054 421,899,071

46
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(O}
2025 31
2025 31 2024 31 2023 31
2,932,502,054 421,899,071  2,512,066,955 361,411,073  1,769,359,592 254,557,765
1.00 144 1.00 144 1.00 144
1.00 144 1.00 144 1.00 144
1.00 144 1.00 144 1.00 144
@ 2019
2(2)
41 46
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2025 31

2,512,066,955 361,411,073

2(c) 68,908,094 9,913,807
2(c) 78,150,760 11,243,550
1,024 147

147,059,878 21,157,505

10,253,543 1,475,177

3,675,176 528,748

236,184 33,980

13,741 1,977

128,001 18,416

82,084 11,809

10 298,665 42,969
712,577 102,518

237,755 34,206

85,700 12,330

7,058 1,015

15,730,484 2,263,145

131,329,394 18,894,360

131,329,394 18,894,360
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2(h) 5,563,020,494 800,351,758
2(h) (5,142,585,395) (739,863,761)
420,435,099 60,487,998

11 (131,329, 394) (18,894, 360)
2,932,502, 054 421,899,071
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2025 31
392,821 18,548 - 411,369
1,894,443,409  4,820,445,663  4,424,341,526  2,290,547,546
617,230,724 742,556,284 718,243,869 641,543,139

46
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2025 31
USD 9,500,000 BNG Bank NV 5.15% 28/2/2025 9,500,000 0.32
9,500,000 0.32
USD 25,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 6/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,990,167 0.85
UsD 12,500,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 20/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 12,471,711 0.42
UsD 30,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 6/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,817,583 1.02
Usb 30,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 13/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,863,966 1.02
Usb 15,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 3/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 14,894,378 0.51
UsD 33,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 24/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 32,687,189 1.11
UsD 15,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 8/7/2025 (Zero Coupon) 14,980,246 0.51
UsD 15,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 8/7/2025 (Zero Coupon) 14,882,410 0.51
Usb 12,000,000 U.S. Treasury Bills 30/10/2025 (Zero Coupon) 11,632,366 0.40
USD 25,000,000  U.S. Treasury Bills 22/1/2026 (Zero Coupon) 24,017,263 0.82
210,237,279 7.17
219,737,279 7.49
USD 30,000,000 Korea Development Bank 4.74% 18/2/2025 30,000,000 1.02
30,000,000 1.02
30,000,000 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Export Development Canada 11/6/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,541,333 1.01
USD 30,000,000 Government of Canada 19/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,932,800 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Government of Canada 10/10/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,138,875 0.99
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USD 25,000,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 13/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,968,403 0.85
USD 25,000,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 26/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,920,139 0.85
USD 20,000,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 3/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 19,930,156 0.68
USD 25,000,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 4/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,909,576 0.85
USD 26,500,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 2/5/2025 (Zero Coupon) 26,221,132 0.90
USD 30,000,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 25/7/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,390,833 1.00

238,953,247 8.15
USD 25,000,000 gsiziﬁ)d'Amortissement de la Dette Sociale 3/2/2025 (Zero 25,000,000 0.85
USD 16,000,000 E;éiiecguggﬁ;tlssement de la Dette Sociale 27/2/2025 15,948,427 0.54
USD 18,672,000 gi&;iﬁ)d Amortissement de la Dette Sociale 1/4/2025 (Zero 18,520,928 0.63
USD 30,000,000 Dexia SA 3/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,892,900 1.02
USD 25,000,000 Dexia SA 11/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,882,750 0.85
USD 30,000,000 Dexia SA 17/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,842,500 1.02
USD 25,000,000 Dexia SA 2/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,822,778 0.85
USD 25,000,000 Dexia SA 4/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,792,916 0.85

193,703,199 6.61
USD 25,000,000 Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 14/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,965,434 0.85
USD 30,000,000 Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 6/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,888,142 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 20/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,837,625 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 10/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,762,400 1.02
USD 30,000,000 FMS Wertmanagement 25/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,921,167 1.02
USsD 30,000,000 FMS Wertmanagement 26/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,917,583 1.02
USD 30,000,000 FMS Wertmanagement 12/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,867,108 1.02
USD 25,000,000 Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 13/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,882,569 0.85
USD 30,000,000 Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 18/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,837,675 1.02
USD 25,000,000 Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 19/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,864,028 0.85
USD 26,500,000 Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 29/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 26,219,689 0.89
USD 30,000,000 Landesbank Baden-Wuerttemberg 19/5/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,623,205 1.01
USD 25,000,000 NRW Bank 13/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,967,014 0.85
USD 22,000,000 NRW Bank 5/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 21,916,400 0.75
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USD 24,000,000 NRW Bank 17/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 23,873,020 0.81
USD 25,000,000 NRW Bank 20/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,861,094 0.85
USD 25,000,000 NRW Bank 30/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,734,535 0.84
USD 20,000,000 NRW Bank 12/9/2025 (Zero Coupon) 19,468,372 0.66
479,407,060 16.35

USD 25,000,000 European Investment Bank 24/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,846,705 0.85
USD 15,000,000 European Investment Bank 17/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 14,851,263 0.51
USD 25,000,000 European Investment Bank 23/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,730,358 0.84
Usb 20,550,000 European Investment Bank 15/5/2025 (Zero Coupon) 20,292,862 0.69
USD 30,000,000 European Investment Bank 23/9/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,178,333 0.99
113,899,521 3.88

USD 30,000,000 BNG Bank NV 6/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,989,225 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 31/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,798,400 1.02
USD 30,000,000 Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 30/4/2025 (Zero Coupon) 29,692,550 1.01
USD 25,000,000 Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 8/7/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,564,601 0.84
114,044,776 3.89

USD 30,000,000 gsiziﬁ)des Depots et Consignations 20/2/2025 (Zero 29,934,975 1.02
USD 25,000,000 Caisse des Depots et Consignations 11/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,887,000 0.85
USD 30,000,000 gg;:iﬁ)Des Depots et Consignations 16/4/2025 (Zero 29,739,900 1.01
USD 25,000,000 KFW International Finance, Inc. 10/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,975,451 0.85
USD 25,000,000 Korea Development Bank 18/3/2025 (Zero Coupon) 24,867,417 0.85
USD 20,000,000 Kreditanstalt fuer Wiederaufbau 7/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 19,989,333 0.68
154,394,076 5.26

1,294,401,879 4414

1,544,139,158 52.65
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USD 99,800,000 Bank of Montreal 4.34% 1/2/2025 99,800,000 3.40
USDb 250,000,000 BNP Paribas 4.75% 1/2/2025 250,000,000 8.53
Usb 150,000,000 Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 4.34% 1/2/2025 150,000,000 5.12
USD 235,000,000 Credit Agricole SA 4.35% 1/2/2025 235,000,000 8.01
USD 125,000,000 Goldman Sachs & Co LLC 1/2/2025 (Zero Coupon) 125,000,000 4.26
USD 190,000,000 Merrill Lynch 4.34% 1/2/2025 190,000,000 6.48
USD 100,000,000 Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd. 4.35% 1/2/2025 100,000,000 3.41
Usb 200,000,000 Wells Fargo Securities LLC 4.33% 1/2/2025 200,000,000 6.82

1,349,800,000 46.03
1,349,800,000 46.03
2,893,939, 158 98.68
38,562,896 1.32
2,932,502,054 100.00
2025 31

46.03
38.65
14.00
98.68
1.32
100.00

41 46
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2025 31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2025 31

147,292 0.08

@
@

@
@

CIS)
o

15
10
15

CREERN
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24 ()

https://www.blackrock.com/cash/en-Im/client-reporting
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(e
2025 31
2025 31
2025 30
2025 31

.621750 .623350
.688563 .693938
.098961 .102232
.138942 .139799
.036750 .043150
.239500 .246850
.000061 .000062
.006467 .006488
.737110 .741400
.030555 .030555

(f

10 12 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(¢
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Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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0.75

1.00

0.025

2025 31

2025 31

65,591
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01
31
12
()
(i)

31

40,000,000
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0.15
0.90
13
2025 31
306,955
14
537
15
2025 31
16

2025 23
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2025 31

2024 11 21
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2025
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2025

Global Allpcation Portfalia

Totad net assets usD 368, 725.454 200,340,270 309,251,840
Bt assel valuss por
A Clads nen-dislibutig unil LEED 21.80 19.56 1807
A Clads non-dslibotieg unil ALD ALD 2258 056 1838
A Class non-dstributing unil JPY JPY 127,28 120.26 11823
Global Equity Income Portfolio
Totad ned assels 1] 402,803,757 58,152,304 88,074,553
Bat asant valuss par
A Class geslributing unil 5D 18.63 1602 1578
F Class dislribuling uni ] 233 2053 1201
Income Strategies Portfalio
Tetad ned dssols usn 203,126,904 0T 83702 220EIT FI3
Kol assel valss per
A GRS deslnbutng unil ] 521 15 07
A Class disiibuiing unit S50 hodged SG0D 8.30 938 B35
AD Class distributing unit LED 889 - &S
B Class distribuging unit LreD %) 516 &08
G Class distrituting urit WED 8.1 220 505
J Class distributing unit 2D 5.0 515 5040
Supar Moy Market Fund!"?
Totad ned assots uso 2.832,502,054 2,512,066.955 1,768,359, 552
Bt assel valuss por
Cormumon distributing unit k2D 1.00 1.00 1.00
Currint distritsuling urit =D 1.00 1.00 1.00
Insatitutional | dtriniling we LD .00 1.00 1.00

" Super Morry Market Fund publishes constard NAY as UED 1 and effectie 1 July 2019 is classified as shorl berm Public Debt Constant Net Asset Value Money
Marked Fund. Please refer io Mobe 2{a).

Thar nodes on pages 41 o 46 form an integrl part of thess financial statements

Annual report and audited financial statements  [11]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2025

Ghobal Al Cabal Eguety

Po ecosa Portfolio

Mot assels o1 the beginning of the year 3,408,743.231 300,340,270 389,152,304

Incame

Bank inlenest 2o} 60,5005 325 — 425

Band and Kan intedasls gl 94,391,004 — -

Disidends {net of withhalding tax) ) 8,345 427 B 345427

Char incoma 1,024 = —

Totad Income 171,673,870 - 8,245,852

Expenses

Bank inlonest gl 1469 1468 -

Managemen foas 4 13675217 2271870 224 BH)

Distribution fess 4 T IS0 4T3 26T N ]

Acdminislen on fees & 92 204 150.65G 204,200

Auadit foes T 61,230 11,568 11,475

Legal lees BT 21T 123,785 114,853

Printing ard othes reporting leas 23,509 41,608 £6.937

Taoes 1 4548 268 54,778

Coordination bis 5 848,715 [ENFd 8367

Darpciilary ledd ] 413 405 28,343 50,071

Transler agert fees 160 264 &0,853 1e14

Laan commiimen feas 12 B1.000 — —

Miscallansous bk 62,717 14,873 24,411

Tatsl exponsos bafare reimbursamont 24,755,104 9,050, 305 ATH, 552

Raitnbur smee af axparses 4 — - -

Teolad pxparsos alter reimbuarsomant 24,753,104 5,059,305 978,552

Ml investment incomal defici) 146,920, TEE 15,058, 305) T.367,300

Falissd gain on Investments 2uah2 k) AT BTG 2E3 B.5as8m 259465, 451

Raalised (loas) on Imesimants 2w (28,978, 114) {101,176} (91874, 250)
Mot realissd gainfioss) on

Fongsgn currancies and foreand foneign exchangs Rrsactions 22w (3379223 (3.298,145) (220, 929)
Swap Wardachion 2[d} 435 — —

Nt realised gainfloss) for thi yiar 5131331 5,486,545 13E71,033

Charmgs in unraalised ApPIACIAton on Invesimants 65,545 443 23,158,638 42137916

Charsgs in unrealissd [deprecation) on Imeesiments 16,687 128 2,613,870 {1.918,011}
Mot change in urrealised appreciaton!|{depreciation) on

Fovesgn curencies and lorwarnd foneign exchangs tarsactions 2y 2(w) 17318 48 8,978

Swap bransactions 2[d) 2435

Hat changs in o lised appreclationi{depraciation] for the year &2,656.328 25,772,344 40,231,083

Increasal{Decronse] in net stsats a3 & result of cparaticns F18,698 415 26,190, 584 61,460,418

Mowamsenis in wunil cagital

Mat receipls as a resull of issos of units 2[H) 5,738 A 120 TR ERS TXT BLED Y S

Mot paymenis as & msull of repuechase of units 2[h) {5.2365,831 4800 (37,000, 127) {33445, BO6)
Increasal{Decrease) In net assets 0% & rosult of movemants In unit capltal 501,982 640 41,685,600 50,175,728

Divviderals declansd 11 (148,772,117 — {T.503.701)
Mot assets ot the ond of the yoear 3,506, 658,169 608,225,454 A02B03, 75T

Thr nodes on pages 41 o 46 form an integrl part of thess financial statements

[12]  BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2025 continued

ity
Bt Fund

UsD

Hal assets sl the beginning of the year 207,183, 702 2,592 068,955
Income

Bank inlones] Fiid] ET.805 G200, 054
Bond and loan inbemsts ey 18,240, 334 TR 150,760
Diraidends (ned of withhalding tau) 2ic) -_ -
DB INCOmE — 1,024
Tetad Incomi 16,268,140 147,050,878
Expanass

Bank intenss Heh —_ —
Managemend ines 4 1,325,184 10253543
Distribution hises 4 1.027 813 167578
Administration lees & 180,217 236,184
Adn lpns T 24445 13,741

Ligal lees 118,768 128,001

Printing and othes reporting fees &2 400 02,08
Taogs i 100,825 288,655
Coondination lbos ] 51,049 2577
Dopositary foes B = s 247,788
Translar agan lees 9881 85,700
Loan commitment fees 12 &1,000 -
Mescolannous bens 23,375 T.058
Totad expenses before reimbursement 2,584 TEY 15,730, 484
Raimbursement of expenses 4

Totad expenses after relmbursament 2,984 TEY 15,730 424
Hat investment incoma deficit) 13,383,377 131,320,354
Faalised gain on Imesimants 2ia). 20} 2.724 8592 _—
Realised (loss) on Invesiments ), 2(b) {17, 300,634)

Mt realised gaini(lcss) on

Fonsagn cuirencied and forwand Tonign axchangs Wardacions ), 2wy 0055 —
Swap ansactons 2(d)y 405

Het realised gainfloss) for the year (14, X%6,257) -
Charsge in unssalised appreciation on Inmstments B2 B0 —
Changs in uncealised (deprecation) on Inesiments 15, 580,465 -
HNat changs in wrrsalised BpprBciaton|Bepnsciaion) on

Farsagn currencies and forward forsign anthangs tarsacions 2d), Qe 8,054

Swap imnsactions 2(dp 2439 a—

Het change in unreallsed appreclationi{deprociation) for the year 16,852 901 -

IncreaseliDecrease] in net assets as a result of operaticns 18,700,031 134,329,254

Mowements in wnit capital

Bot receipls a5 & resull of issue of units 2(h) 13,452 355 5,562 020,494

Mat payments as a resull of repuerchase of units 2k (23,800, 152} (5.142 585,305}
Increasal{Decronse) in nal SEsots 08 & rosull of mavemants in unit capitsl (10,307,797} 420,435,099

Deiderds declared i (8, 449,022) (134,320,304}
Mot assets ol the ond of the year 203,126,904 2,832,502,054

Thr nodes on pages 41 o 46 form an integrl part of thess financial statements

Annual report and avdited financial statements  [13]
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2025

Lladty gulatanding Ulsits gulatanding
ak the beginning Units Units: at the e

of the year Iwsued redesad of the year

Global Allecation Portfolio

i Clags non-distribauting unit 11,481 &3T 3,155 547 1,140,482 13,606,002
A Clags non-distribuling unit ALID 4 008 272 330620 455 154 382 TR
A Clags non-dissibuling unll JBY 25007 431 1,057 038 8,634 B53 18320618
Ghohal Equity income Portfolio

A Class distribuling unit 2002 EBE 562 953 263,205 2332 603
F Clads distributing unit 1r.21r.007 3,345 Add 1,303 867 16,258, Bad
Income Strategies Portfolio

M Class destribating Ll 205 B2 re2ha (=i 014,425
# Class distributing unit 550 hedged 20,000 20,000
AD Class distributing unit a8 X5 5 B05 64,010
B Class dtribuling wal 356,134 — 4625 351,500
C Class distributing unil 1540 — — 1.540
oJ Glarks clastribanieg unit 5014004 & A30.16% A.B50.555 5474615
Super Monay Market Fund

Comenon SEstibuteg unil 302 E521 18,548 - 411,350
Curnenl distributing unil 1./604 443,400 4,820 445,663 4424, 341,535 2200547 548
Ethutaanal | distribiting wunil 67230724 T42 556,284 718,243,869 641,543,130

Thed Feodisl o pges 41 60 86 Form an integral part of Mkl [nancal SIINSTEnt

[14]  BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Super Money Market Fund

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2025

- %ol Ar | % ol

Het Mot
Holding Description USD Assels Hadding Description USD Asssls
Transferable Securitios and Money Market Instruments Admitted France cortinwed
to an Cfficial Stock Exchange Listing or Dealt in on Ancther USD1EBETZ000 Caisse drAmortissemant de la
Regulated Market Daltn Sociale 1042035 (Zerm
Coupan) 18520928 0.63
BONDS USD 30,000,000 Daxia SA JW2025 [Zemn Cou-
Hetherlands poni 20892900 102
USD 8,500,000 BHG Bank NV 515% S0 25,000,000 Dexia SA 1132025 (Zeno
282120285 9,500.000 0,32 Coupan) MAEADTED OS5
0500000 0.92 S0 300000000 Dexia SA 1 TAE025 (an
— Caupan) 20842500 102
United States USD 25000000 Dexia SA 24¢2025 [Fem Cou-
LSO 25000000 LS Traasury Bils pon) 24EFRTTRE OBS
B2 6 (Zena Cowpon] 24 500,167 .85 USD 25,000,000 Deaxia SA 41442025 (Zemn Cou-
USD 12500000 WS Treasury Biss pon) TIZHE 085
FORI2025 (Zero Coupon) 12470711 042 vearon e 661
USD 30000000 LS Treasury Bits : :
B2 (Zora Coupon] 29817503 102 Germany
USD 30,000,000 LS. Treasury Bits USD 25,000,000 Erste Atwicklurgsanstalt
132035 (Zern Goupon) P65 102 140212025 (Zere Coupon) 24565434 085
USD 15000000 LS Treasury Bils IS0 30.000,000  Ersle Atwicklungsarstalt
AR02S (Zang Coupon] 14EI4ITE 051 EARA2S (Zera Coupon) 20888142 102
WSO 33,000,000 S Treasury Bils USD 30,000,000 Erste Abwicklurgsanstal
24412025 (Zaro Coupon) IEATES 1M 2025 {Zoro Coupon) BEATEIS 102
USD 15,000,000 LS Treasury Bils USD 30,000,000 Ersle Abwicklurgsanstall
BTr025 (Zerg Coupon) 14,580,246 051 10/ara025 {Zere Coupon) 28,762 400 1,02
USD 15000000 LS Treasury Biss WS0 30,000,000 FMS Wertmanagement
BTIA025 [ Zais Couspon) 14 BB2 410 051 RIS {Tere Coupon) 20,521,167 1.02
USD 12000000 LS Treasury Biss LISD 30,000,000 FMS Warimanagemant
BOMOR02S (Zera Coupan)  11,632366 0.0 FEZR02S (Zern Coupon) 0917583 102
WSD 5000000 LS Treasury Bills WSD 30,000,000 FMS Wertmanagamand
F2N2026 (Zero Coupon) 24,017 263 0.E2 1272025 {Zero Coupon) 20,887,108 1.02
0237978 77 W50 25000000 Krectansialt fuar Wiedaraul-
Total Bonds 219737319 149 P;b:;mzs e e 24BH2565 085
S0 30,000,000 Krecitanstalt fuer Wiederaut-
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS o % ova e
United States peei) EIETS 102
LIZ0 30,000,000 Kok Devalgribnt Bank USD 25000000 Kracitanstalt fuer Wiederaul-
4.74% 1022025 0.000.000  1.02 b 1VAROZS [Zive Cou-
30,000,000 102 pn) MABEALZE 085
Todal Ciortificats of Daposts 0000000 102 IS0 26,500,000 Krecitanstalt fuer Wisderaut-
ST b ZSUAROZS (2 Coa-
COMMERCIAL PAPER pen) 26210680 089
Canada W50 30,000,000 Lanceshank Bacen-
it Wiusiemibeng
sl e At PO 18/52028 (Zoro Coupon) 29623208 1.01
LD 50,000,000 Sovermanert o Conode IS0 25,000,000 N?\l Barik 1122028 (Zero
oupn) 4567014 085
S0 S0.000000 G 19.-2-:::3 ﬁeéﬁ;‘am} IR0 02 IS0 22,000,000 NAWW Bark SA/2025 (Zerm
10102025 (Fera Coupan)  20.136.875  0.90 Coupan) 7.NGA00 075
USD 25000000 PSP Capital. Inc. L1501 24,000,000 NFSY Bank 17132025 (Ze0
1322025 [Zero Coupon) 24860403 085 Caupan) BETIN0 0.8
USD 25000000 PSP Capital, e, WS0 25000000 NRW Bank 2GRS (Zoro
2622025 (Zaro Coupon) 4520139 0.8 Coupan) 24.Bo1.004 0.5
WSO 20,000,000 PSP Capital, inc. W50 25,000,000 NRW Bark HNERE02S (Zero
V025 (Zere Coupon] 19.530156  0.58 Coupan) UTMTG LM
USD 25,000,000 PSP Capital Inc. S0 200000000 NRW Bars 1292025 (Zero
425 (Zara Coupon) 29509576 085 Conspent] 1946872 0.68
USD 26,500,000 PSP Capital, Inc. 470407060 16.35
FEHZS (Zare Coupon) 26221132 0890
USD 30,000,000 PSP Captal Inc 0 Luxembourg
SIS [Zero Coupon) 20,700,833 1.00 u S000,000  Eurcpean Investment Bani
SRR FAPIIS (Zoes Coupon) 4B46T05 065
238.953.247 815 USE 15000000 Ewrcpean Ivestmand Bank
France 174812025 (Zero Coupor) 14851263 051
. W50 25,000,000 European Investment Bar
L 28,000.000 c“;’if:;f;‘:;’;,;?%d&:u TNAIS (Zero Coupon) 24TI0IEE 0B
Counen] 2s o000 0ES S0 20.550,000 Eufopean Irestment Bari
USD 15,000,000 Caisse TAmortissament de 3 IR0 ZacoCoupor) 2020282 089
Dilts Sociake
FTRN2035 (Zoro Coupon) 15,540 437 ), 54

Thet ricdieh o papes &1 40 86 Form an inegral part of M fnancal SLNSTants
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Super Money Market Fund continued

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2025

Amartised % ol Amartised
Cost Mot Cost
Hadding USD Asseis Holding Description
Luxembeourg confinged .
USD 30,000,000 Euwmdpean Irmastrment Bank Revarse Repurchase MHBI‘I‘HH‘[‘B
FAR025 [Zave Coupon) 299TEII 059 United States
3 B 53 85 | LSO 95,800,000 Bank of Montreal 4.34%
1 ! ] 12025 SO.E00.000 340
Matharlands LEED 250,000,000 BMNP Paribas 4, T5% 1272025 50, DOy DM 8.53
LSD 30,000,000 BNG Bank MV 622025 {Zaro LS 150,000,000 Citigroup Global Marksts, Inc
Caoupan) 20,585 228 1.02 4.34% 1W2R0is 50, QKD QoM 512
USD 30,000,000 Mederkandse Walsmchaps- ST 235,000,000 Credit Agricole SA 4.35%
bank My 312025 (Zeo WRROES 23 Q. Ny 8.0
Coigsn) 1. TOR. 400 1,02 LEED 128000,000 Goidman Sachs & Co LLC
USD 30,000,000 MNededandse Walerschaps- 12025 (Zerd Coupon) 125, 000,000 4.8
bank My 3002025 (Zeeo UED 190,000,000 Mardll Lynch 4 34% 1722025 1500, G50, 0y §.48
Coupan) 24 592 580 1.01 LD 1000000, 000 Mizuho Secures Co, Lid
USD 25,000,000 Mededandss Walerscheps- 4.35% 122025 1100, 00, D00 341
bank Ny BTRH028 (Zong LEED 2000000000 Wells Fargo Seourities LLC
Coupon) 24,564 61 .84 4.33% 125 000, 060, OO 6.62
114,084,776 189 1,345, B0 DR 45,00
United States Total Renverse Repurchase Agresments 1,340,800,0600  48.03
USD 300000000 Caisse dés Dapots al Cordig- Sacurites portiolo 8t amorlised cosd 2893538158 SA.GH
nations: 20022025 (Zoeno
Coupon) 20,934,975 1.02 | O Nel Assets _ 3BSEIEDE 132
S0 25000000 Caisse des Depods et Consig- Total Hel Assets (USD) 2,8932,502.054  100.00
nations 112025 (Zemn —
Coupan) 24 BAT.000 0,85

USD 30,000,000 Caisse Des Depals ot Consig-

nations: 16472025 (Zano

Coupsn) 20,739,900 1.0
LUSD 25000000 KFW Inbernabional Financs,

I, 1 WRR2025 (Zeng Cou-

pon) 24,975,481 085
LSO 25 000 000 Besed Dindlopirsinl Bark
TAV2028 (Zoro Coupon) 24,857 417 (.85

USD 20,000,000 Kredtanstal fuer Wiederaud-
bau FRGOES (Eare Goupon)  1H.585.333 0.5
154,304,076 5.26 |
Tolal Commercaal Papen 1,204 401 8T8 dd. 14 |
Todal Transferabla Sacurnlies and Money Markat

Instrumsinks Admitbed to an Official Stock Exchange
Listing or Daait inon Another Regulated Market 1,544, 135,158 5265

Sector Breakdown
as at 31 January 2025

Rewarss Rapurchass Agneemsants 46,03
Financial 3ES
Gevarnimisnt 14,00
Socuriies portiolio af amaortised oot o868
Ohar Mot Assels 1,32

100,00

Thet ricdieh o papes &1 40 86 Form an inegral part of M fnancal SLNSTants
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investment Series (the *Fund”) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part |l of the
law aof 17 December 2010 relating 1o undertakings for collective
investment as amendead (the 2010 Law™). The Fund qualifies as
an alternatvg imestment fund (AIF7) in accordance with
Directive 2011/861/EU of the Eurcpean Parliament and of the
Council of 8 Jure 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMD") and the Luxembourg law of 12 July

2013 on alledrative mvestment fund managers as amended (the
2013 Law").

The Managemen!t Company appoinied BlackRock Asset
Management Ireland Limited (the “AIFM7) as tha alternative
imvestrment fund manager. The AIFM will provide and procure
the provision of imnestment management services, including
portfolio and risk management funclions, for the Fund, The
AIFM is enfitled to delegate its funclions, powers, discretions,
duties and obligations, subject to AIFMD reguirements.

Az at 31 January 2025, the Fund offered units in four Portfolios, =
Global Allacation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Partfolio,

Income Strategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund (each a
“Portfolio” and collectively the “Portiolios™). Each Portfolio has
different imvestment chjectives and invests in different types of
investments.

Each Portfolio is a separate pool of assals and is represanted
by separate units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
classes as detailed on page 48,

The classes of unils have equivalent rights in the Portiolics bl
carry different features and charging structlures, which are mone
fully described in the Fund's Prospectus.

Significant events during the year

= Effective 2 February 2024, Geoffrey Radcliffe resigned as
Direcior of the Board of the Managemsant Company:

Effective 27 February 2024, Benjamin Gregsan was apponted
as a Direclor of the Board of the Management Comparny.

Effective 1 October 2024, Scott Matthews was appointed as a
Director of the Board of the Management Company:

Effective 1 October 2024, Tarek Mahmoud resigned as
Director of the Board of the Management Company. "

Effective 20 December 2024, Scott Matthews resigned as
Director of the Board of the Managemsant Company.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financal statements have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principhes in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulalory requirements relating to the
preparatian of the financial statements as prescribed by the
Luzembourg authonties for Luxembourg invesimen! companies
and include the following significant accounting pelicies:

{a) Valuation aof Investments and Olher Assels

The Fund's invessiments and other assets are valued as follows:

Non-Money Market Portfolios

Term loans are ol listed on any secunibes exchange. In
determining the Net Asset Value ("NAVT), the Portfolic
ulilises the valuations of term loans furnished by a pricing
service approwed by the AIFM. The pricing service typically
valuas tarm koans at the bid price when quotations are
readily available. Term koans for which quolations are nof
readily available are valued at fair market value on a
consistent basis as determined by the pricing sarvice using
pricing matrices to determine valuations. The procedures of
thie pricing services and s evaluations are reviewed by the
Irvestmient Adviser of the rebavant Portfolio (the “Imestment
Adviser”) under the general supervision of the AIFM. The
AIFM has determined in good faith that the use of a pricing
service is a fair method of determining the valuation of term
laans,

Portfolio securities consisting of equities, bonds and other
debt instruments (other than short-term obligations but
imcluding listed issues) may be valued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or more pricing services which determing
prices for normal, institutional-size trading units of such
securities using market information, transactions for
comparable securiies and various ralationships betwean
securities that are generally recognised by institutional
traders;

Portfolio securities that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
known price on such exchanges or markels as of the close
of the business day immediately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Income Postholio for
which securibes are valued at the valuation date at the last
knawn price as of 4.00 pm. Luxembowng time (“4Pk

CET or, in each case, the "Relevant Time"). If there are no
such sales of a particular security, the value of such security
will be the last available bid price of the Relevant Time or, in
cerfain crcumstances, such portfolio securities are valued at
the last zale price on the exchange that is the primary market
for such securities, or the last quoted bid price for those
securities for which the Over-the-Counter (*OTC") market
such as NASDAQ, is the primary market for listed securities;

Investments in open-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basis of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investmeant schamae;

Fixed income securilies that are not listed on stock
exchanges or traded on ather requiated markets are valued
al the last available bid price or yield equivalents oblained
from one or more dealers or pricing services, Secunlies
traded in the OTC market are valued at the last avallable bid
price. In cases where securities are tradad on more than cne
exchange, the securities are valued on the exchange
designated by or under the direction of the AIFM as the

Annual report and audited financial statemants [41]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

primary markel. Portiohio securities that are traded boih in .
the OTC market and on a stock exchange are valued
acconding to the broadest and most reprasentaltive market;

= When markel quotations are nol readily available or the
AIFM determines thal the independent market quotation
does nol reflect fair market valwa, the AIFM will, in
accordance with applicable laws, determing a fair market
value for that assel or labdlity. When determining the price for
such an asset or kability, ihe AIFM may use cne or more of a
vanely of fair valuation methodologies (depanding on factors
including the assel type). The AIFM might, for example, price
the assel based on the criginal cost of the investment or it
might use propaetary or third-party medals, including models
that rely upon direct partiolic managemeant pricing inputs and
which reflect the significance attributed to the various factors
being considered by the AIFM when it values the assat
andios Kability, as well as certain assumplions. The AIFM
might also use prices of actual, executed, histoncal
tramsachions in the assel andior liabily (o related o
comparable assets andfor liabilities) as a basis for valuation
of even use, where appropriate, an appraisal by a third party
exparienced in the valuation of similar assets andfor
liabiities.

A al 31 January 2025, the adjusted fair value appliad to certain
securities is disclosed in the table below;

Fair vaikek

Currency

Iracoema Strategies Porticlio S0 141,092 .08

Plaase refer 1o the Portfolio of Investments section for further
details of the securnties,

Super Money Market Fund

+ The AIFM has astablished procedures designed to stabilise, o
ther mxtent reasonably possible and in accordanca with ihe
Money Markel Funds Reguiation {the "MMFR™), the Supoer R
Momey Markel Fund's price per unil as computed for the
purposs of subscriptions and redemptions at USD 1 {the .
“gonstant NAV). MAY is rounded to the nearest percentage
podnt, or its equivalant in currency terms;

* The Portfolio’s underying securities and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amortized cost. This
imealves valuing an instrument at its cost and thereafter
assuming a constant amortisation to maturity of any discount
or premium, regardiess of the impact of Tucluating interest
rates on the market value of the instruments. While this
methed provides certainly in valuation, it may resull in periods
during which value, as determined by amortised cost, is
higher ar lower than the price the Super Monay Market Fund
woulkd receive if it sold the instrument;

¥

The Portfolio is classified as a shorl term Public Debt CNAY
MMF and complies with the requirements under MMFR. As a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prudent and
rigorous liquidity manpagement procedures 1o ensure
campliance with any liquidity thresholds applicable to the
Portfolio;

¥

[42]  BlackRock Glabal Investment Series

To assess wheiher the assels of the Portfolio are sufficiently
liquid to meat reasonably foreseeable redemptions and nol
force assels from being liguidated at discounted prices, the
volatility of the Portfolic’s assets is frequently monitored. The
AIFM may also apply one or more of the foflowing measures:

= imposing liquidity fees on redemplians that adeguately
reflect the cost 1o the Portfolio of achéeving liguidity and
ensune that the wnithalders who remain in the relevant
Portiolio are not unfairly disadvantaged when ather uni
holders redeem their units during the perniod,

= if, within a pericd of 90 days, the total duration of
SuUSpansions exceads 15 days, the Super Moneay Markal
Fund shall autormatically cease o ba a short-tarm Public
Debt CNAY MMF and the AIFM shall inform unithalders of
ihis fact:

after the Board of Directors of the Management Company
of the Portfolio has determined its coursa of action with
regard to above appoints, it shall promplly provide details of
ils decision o the competent autharity of the Partfolio;

= imposing redemption gates thal limit the amount of wnits 1o
be redeemead on any one working day to a maximum of
10% of the unils of the Portfalio for any period up to
15 working days;

imposing a suspension of redemptions for any period of up
o 15 working days; or

1aking no immeadiate acton clher than fulfilling the obligation
laid down in Arlicle 24 (2) of the MMFR.

The Portfolia calcukates a shadow NAY wharely underlying
secunties and monay market instruments are valued based
upon a mark-to-market price, In compliance with MMFR
requirements, the difference betwesn the constant NAV per
unit and the MAV per wnit calculated wsing mark-to-market is
monitored and published daily on the website of the MMF:
hitps-fwans blackrock comicashien-Imiclisnt-reporting

All Portfolios

Cash iz valued at s nominal amount;

Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreaments
are valued al cost plus accrued interest. Receivable and
payable balances neated 1o repurchase agreemants and
revarse repurchase agreements are included in the Statement
of Net Assets respectively under the caplions "Recehvable for
investments sold” and "Payable for investments purchased”,
The accrued inlerest from reverse repurchase agreements is
included in the Statermant of Net Assels under the caption
“Intarasl and dwvidands recevabla™

Liquid assets such as money market instrumenis are valued
on an amorised cost basis:

Assels which include, in particular, interest and dividends
recaivable, receivable for investments sold and receivable for
Fund units subscnbed are valued at nominal value;

Liabilittes which include, in particular, payable for investments
purchased, payable for Fund units redeemed, interest and
dividends payable are valued al nominal value
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

{b) Realised gains and losses on Invesiments

Realised gains and losses on sales of investiments have been
determined on the basis of the average cost method.

(c) Incoma/Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for income from ils investments on the
following basis:

= interest income is accrued daily and includes the amortisation
an a straight-ine basis of pramiums and accration of
discounts,

bank interest is recognised on an accruals basis and includes
interast income from reverse repurchase agreements;

dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and is
shown nel of withholding tax;

income from reverse repurchase transactions is inchuded in
the Statement of Operations under the caption "Bank
Interest”.

(d) Financial Derivative Instruments

During the year, the Fund has antered into a number of forward
foreign exchange transactions and futures contracts. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair market value 1o close the
contracts an the accounting date. Surplusesideficils arising from
these and closed unseitled contracis are taken to unrealised
appreciationddepreciation) and are incuded under assels or
liabilities (as appropriate) in tha Stalement of Met Assets. The
net change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation and the
nel realized gains of losses on settliement oF closing
transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in Mel Assels.

During the year, the Fund has entered into swap transactions to
exchange the refurn generated by one instrument for the return
generaled by another investment, The Fund can write credit
defaull swaps ("CDS") and purchase CDS. When the Fund
writes and'or purchases a CDS, a senes of premiums is paid to
of paid by the Fund, in return for 8 payment contingent on a
credit event {predefined in the agreement). The premiums arne
included in the cost of CDS. Where possible, swaps are marked
to market based upen dally prices obtained from third party
pricing agents and verified against the actual market makes.
Where such quotations are nat available swaps are priced
based upon daily quotations from the market maker. In bath
cases changes in quotalions are recorded as nal change in
unrealised appreciation or depreciation in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Nel Assels. Net realised gains or
losses on maturity or lermination of the swaps and the inlerest
earned in relation 1o the swaps are presented in the Statement
of Operations and Changes in Net Assets,

Each Portfolio may sedl call options and purchase pul oplions on
stock indices 1o seek to hedge portfolio securities against the
impact of anticipated general price declings in equity markets or
specihic ndustry seclors thereol. Oplions on indices are similar
to options on securities except that on exercise or assignment,
the parties 1o the contracl pay of receive an amount af cazh
equal 1o the difference batween the closing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion imes a specified mulliple.
The effectiveness of a hedge empleying stock index options will

depend primarily on the degree of correlation betwean
movements in the value of the index underying the option and
in the portion of the portfolio being hedged. Amang other
factors, the degree of correlation with respect to comvertible
securities will be affected by the degree lo which the market
value of portiolio securiies is attributable to their conversion
valua. Tha net change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation
and the nat realised gains or lossas on expiration or clasing
ransachions of oplions afe presented in the Statement of
Cpesations and Changes in Net Assels.

(&) Foreign Exchange

The cost of investmenis in currencies other than the currency of
denomination of the respectve Portfolio has bean translated at
the rates of exchange ruling at the time of purchase. Market
value of investments and other assels in currencies other than
the currency of denomination of the respective Porifolo have
been iranslated at the exchange rate prevailing at the Portfolios
valuation point in Luxembourg as at 31 January 2025. The net
change in unrealised appreciation or depreciation and the net
realised gains or losses on disposal or setilement of other
assels of Rabilities in currencies othar than the currency of
denamination of the respectve Podtfolio are prasented in the
Statement of Operaticns and Changes in Net Assels.

Income and expenses in currencies other than the currency of
denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated at
the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

Different exchange rates are resulling from the pricing matrix
and different valuation points between the different Portfolios. In
the below table, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2025 are presented for Global Allocation Portfolio and Global
Equity Income Portfolio, the SPM CET exchange rales on

30 January 2025 are presented for Income Strategies Portfolio
and Super Money Market Fund.

The fellowing exchange rates were used to translate the
imvestiments and other assetls and other liabilities for all
Portfolios denominated in currencies other than the base
currency of the respective Portfalio as at 31 January 2025

0E1TH)

JEY 0.005457

56D Qv 0741400
WO 0030555 000555

{f) Combined Financial Stalements
The Combined Financial Statements of the Fund are expressed

in S0 and inclede the total of the financial statements of the
different Portfolios,

Annual report and avdited financial statements [43]
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(g) Deferred Organisational Expenses

Global Allccation Porfiolo

Ooooooooooooooooooad

(5] i A £T)

BlackRock Japan Co., Lid.

Deferred organisational expenses are capitalised and are -

amartised on a straight-line basis over a five year period, As at okl Equitybncnms Fortilly  Elackfto: :"m =i Managems | (LK} Limited
1. 25, all Portfolios h I tised their def Icome Sralegies Portolio BiackRock Financial Manasgement, Inc.

31 Januwary 2025, all Portfolios had fully amaortised their deferrad Cuper Fund Rock E Ine.

organisational expanses.
{h) Income Equalisaton

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of equalisation to
prevent the undistributed income per unit from fluctuating solely
by reason of subscriptions and redemplions of s units. This is
accomplished by maintaining an equalisation account for the
relevant Portfalio. The equalisation account is credited with that
partion of the proceeds of subscribed units representing the net
undistnibuted mcome per unit of those units, and is debited with
that portion of amy redemption payment representing net
undistributed income per unit of the redeemed units. A portion
of the dividends declared by a Portlolio may consist of amounis
praviousty credited to the equalisation account. The yield
reported 1o investons will include amounts paid from net income
a5 well as any amount paid from the equalisation account,

The Income Equalisation is included in the Mevements in unit
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net
Assels.

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
(a) Managemant Conpany

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A, is the
Management Company of the Fund, Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed o manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exclusive
account of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and such
olher agents as appropriate, ncluding Distribulors of the Fund's
Units in and cutside Japan are appaointed by the Management
Company. The Management Company has delegated the
appaintment of Distributors o the Principal Distributor

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.4, is a wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is regulated by the
Commission de Surveilance du Secteur Financler ("CS3F7),

{b) AIFM

The Management Company has appointed BlackRock Asset
Management Ireland Limited as the alternative investment fund
manager to provide and procure the provision af imestment
managament services, including portiolio and risk management
funclions, for the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD, The
AIFM is enfitled to delegate its funclions, powers, discretions,
duties and obligations, subjed to AIFMD requiraments.

The AIFM is a whaolly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and ig authonised by the Central Bank of Ireland,

The AIFM s paid out of the managemant fee dus to the
Management Company, as outlined in Nola 4.

(c) Investment Advisers
Subject to the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the

Portfalios receives inwestment advisory services from the
Investmeant Advisers:

[44] BlackRock Global Investment Series

The Investment Advisers farm part of the BlackRock Group.

The Investment Advisers are each paid out of the management
fee due to the Management Company, as outlined in Note 4.

4. Management and Distribution Fees
(a) Management fees

During the year, the Fund pakd management fees to the
Management Campany.

Thee level of management fee varies from 0.33% to 0.75% per
annum of the NAV, with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
not pay @ management fee but rather a fee 1o the Imestiment
Advisar or affiliates under a separate agreement. The leveld of
management fee varies according to which Portiolio and unit
class the mveslor buys, These fees accrue daily, are based on
the NAW of the ralevant Portiolio and are paid monthly. The
Fund's AIFM and Investment Adviser fees are borne by the
Management Campany and paid through the management fee.

{b) Distribution fees

The Management Company has also entered into a Distribution
Agreement with BlackRock Investment Management

(UK} Limited (the “Principal Distributes™). The Principal
Distributor may conclude contraciual arrangemants with cartain
Distributors for the distribution of units outside the LS. such as
the Japanese Distributors (as disclosed on pages 3 1o 4),

Thee level of distribution fee varies from 0.1667% to 1.00% per
annum of the NAY, with the exceplion of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Institutional | units, which do not pay a distribution
fee. The level of distibution fee vanes according o which
Portfolio and unit class the investor buys. Thesa feas accrue
daily, are based on the NAY of the relevant Portfolio and are
paid quarterhy.

The managemaent and distribution fees per unil class for each
Portfolio are disclosed in detail in the Fund's Prospectus.

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has enlered into an agreement with
BlackRock Operations (Luxembourg) 5.4 rl. ("BROL") pursuant
to which BROL, under the direction of the Board of Directors of
the: Management Company, provides certain corporate and
administrative coordination services on behalf of the Fund.

The coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daily NAV of
the Fund (excluding Class F unils), ped annum. BROL is a
wivolly owned subsidiary of BlackRock, Inc. and an affiliate of
the Investment Advisers,

6. Administration Fees

The Managemenl Company has appointed State Strest Bank
International GmbH as the Fund's Administrative Agent in
Luxembourg o assist the Managemen! Company al its principal
office in Luxembeourg with general administrative tasks pursuant
to the Administration Agreement, against charging usual fees for
these services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

7. Audit Fees
Detatled below are the fees paid to Deloitte Audit 5.4 rl. for the
year ended 31 January 2025,

Al 2l il relatesd senvices [exchading VAT) 65,591
HOrF-BL SEnicEs. -

8. Depositary Fees

Tha Management Company has entered into the Depositary
Agreement with the Depasitary, State Strest Bank International
GmibH, Luxembourg Branch.

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, ather than cash held in trading accounts or held in
any operating accounts for expenses or dividend disbursement
accounis {(which may be maintained at other banks), are to be
held by or to the order of the Depositary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on term deposit with other banks approved by the
Depositary, who shall continee fo supervise such funds. The
Depositary is responsible for the collection of principal and
ircome on, and the payment for and collection of proceeds of
securities bought and sold for the Fund. In line with the
compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance with AIFMD,
the Depositary’s role pursuant to AIFMD enhances Unithalder
protection and includas the responsibility to safakeep the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all financial instruments, cash
and other assets of the Fund (the “Safekeeping Function”).

The Depositary charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a fraction of a
parcentage per annum of the net assels of the Fund. The
Deposilary may appoint one or more correspendent banks, and
it is expected that the Depositary retains a correspondent bank
im the United States, whose fees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Safekeeping function, the Depositary is liable o the
Fund for the loss of financial instruments which are held in
custody:

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimate holding company of the Managemant Company,
the Princapal Distributor, the AIFM, the Coordinator and the
Irestment Advisers is BlackRock, Ine., a company incorporated
in Delaware, LISA,

During the year there have been no significant transactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
were not on normal commercial terms.

10, Taxes

Under present Luxembouwrg law and practice, the Fund is not
liable to any Luxembourg crdinary income or capital gakns tax,
nor are dividends paid by the Fund subject 1o any Luxembourg
withhalding tax. However, the Fund is subject to a subscription
tax (“taxe d'abonnement”) of 0.05% per annum levied on the
NAN of each Portfolio at the last day of each calendar quarter,
in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect of Super
Meney Market Fund as well as in respect of the Portfalios or
unit classes reserved for instiutional imestors within the
meaning of Article 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced tax
of 0.01% per annum is levied,

Far the year ended 31 January 2025, Global Allocation Pertfolio
has not paid Luxembourg laxes, as no subscriplion tax is paid
on the assels held by the Portfolio in other undertakings for
collective investiment already subject 1o that tax in Luxembourg.

Under applicable foreign lax laws, withholding taxes may be
imposed an inferest, dividends and capital gains al vanous
rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The net income (i.e., accrued intesest income net of accrued
expanses) is declared as a dividend on each valualion date on
all units outstanding on that day 1o the Unitholders of record
immediately prior to the daily determination of MAY per unit,
pravided ahways that wnits shall be antitled 1o a dividend only
from the day on which their subscription is settled prios to 12PM
Luxembourg tme and that units redeemed shall not be entiled
o recaive the daily dividend declared on the saettlement day of
their redemption,

Man-Money Market Partfolios

Thee net income of the relevant cther Portfolios consists of

(1) interest accrued, discount earmed (including bath original
issue and market discount) or other income earned, (H) less the
estimated expenses of the Portfolio (including management
fees). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Company may determing if, and
to whalt extent, such dividend is ta be paid cut of undistibuted
net inmvestmeant incomse, realised and unrealised capital gains,
regpectively increased or decreased by net equalisation credits
or debils.

12. Credit Facility

As at 31 January 2025, Income Strategies Portfolio was entitled
to a credit facility of WSD 40,000,000 from Stale Streel Bank
and Trust Company. Mo portion of the credit facility was used
during the financial year ended 31 January 2025.

A loan commitment fee is charged on a daily basis in relation 1o
this credit facility which is included in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Met Assets. The loan commitment
fee consists of 0.15% charged on the unused portion of the
credit fadlity and the Federal Funds Effective Rate or the
Owernight Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is higher) +
0.%90% margin spread on the used portion of the credit facility

Thee comrmitrnent fee is disclosed in the Statement of
Operations under the caption “Loan commitment feas”™.

13. Transaction costs

In order 1o achieve its imesiment objective, a Portiolio will incur
transactions costs in relation (o irading activity on its Portfalio of
Investments, Disclosed in the table below are separately
idemifiable transaction costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
year ended 31 January 2025. These include commission costs,
settlement fees and broker fees,

Trangaction cosld

Global Allocation Porfolio ush —
Giobal Equity Income Partiolio ush 306,955
Inncoine: Sarirlegies Portiolio ush -
Super Money Market Fund usD -

Mot all fransaction cosls are separately identifiable. For swaps,
forward foreign exchange transactions, fulures confracts,
options and swaplions, ransaction costs are included in the

Annual report and avdited financial statements [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

purchase and sales price of the investment. Whilst nat
separately identifiable these transaction costs are capiured
within the performance of each Portfolio, Market impact costs
are nol separately identifiable and are therefore also not
dischosed in the above table.

14. Amounts due fromito broker

The Portfolios trade dervatives with a range of coumerpartes,
The counterparties o forward foreign exchange transactons
and swap transactions are shown in the Portfolio of
Investments.

Cash eollateral is paid of received on SWaps 1o cover any
exposura by the counterparty to the Fund or by the Fund to the
counterparty.

Due fromita Broker on the Statement of Net Assels consists of

cash collaleral and margin paidirecenead from the Fund's
clearing brokers and vanious counterparties.

[4E] BlackRock Global Investmant Series

Cash

CCy dua bom bmbar dug o

Income Sralegies Portlolo ush 5

15. Subsequent events

There have baen no events subsaguent to the financial year
end, and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements, which in the opindon of the Board of Direclors of the
Management Company may have had a material impact on the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 January
2025,

16. Approval date

The financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company on 23 Apl 2025,
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue

Ag al 31 January 2025, the Fund offers the following unit

classes,

A Class distibuting unit in LISD

A Class distributing unit in SG0 hedged
A Class non-distribuling unit in AUD

A Class non-distributing unit in JPY

A Class non-distributing unit in USD
AD Class

AD Clags distributing unit in USD

B Class

B Class distributing unit in LISD

Unit Classes Launched

There were no unit classes launched during the yaar

Unit Classes Closad

21 Moverniber 2024

Effective dste  Fund

Income Stralegies Portiolio

G Class

G Class destributing wnit in LISD

Commeon distributing unit in LISD
Current Units

Current distributing wnit in USD
F Class’

F Class desiributing wnil in USD

Institutianal | distibuting unil in USD
J Class

J Class distributing und in USD

' Awvailable to instfutional investors.

D Class distributing unil in USD

[48]

BlackRock Global Investmant Series
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2024 31

2024 31
2,549,128,916 366,743,177

2(a) 2,549,128,916 @ 366,743,177
2(a) 193,569,746 27,848,879
2(a) 930,740 133,906
2(a) 1,169,800,000 168,299,126
2(a) 1,760 253
2(a) 86,076 12,384
3,913,517,238 563,037,725

2(a) 1,387,141,290 199,568,017
2(a) 10,722,770 1,542,685
(a),4,§’6’7,8 3,586,223 515,950
1,401,450,283 201,626,652

2,512,066,955 361,411,073

2(a)

47
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@

31

2023 31 2022 31

2,512,066,955 361,411,073

1,769,359,592 254,557,765  2,270,580,594 326,668,430

1.00

1.00

1.00

@

42 47

144

144

144

1.00 144 1.00 144
1.00 144 1.00 144
1.00 144 1.00 144
2019
2(2)
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2024 31

1,769,359,592 254,557,765

2(c) 62,480,457 8,989,063
2(c) 47,123,558 6,779,666
84,240 12,120

109,688,255 15,780,849

7,681,633 1,105,157

2,555,929 367,722

236,810 34,070

13,204 1,900

52,438 7,544

10 227,556 32,738
526,163 75,699

172,729 24,851

84,009 12,086

2(¢c) 6,009 865
11,556,480 1,662,631

156,547 22,522

11,399,933 1,640,108

98,288,322 14,140,741

98,288,322 14,140,741
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2(h) 4,139,176,126 595,503,269
2(h)  (3,396,468,763) (488,649,961)
742,707,363 106,853, 308

11 (98,288,322) (14,140,741)
2,512,066,955 361,411,073
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2024 31
375,063 17,758 - 392,821
1,241,509,673  3,108,689,713  2,455,755,977  1,894,443,409
527,474,856  1,030,469,311 940,713,443 617,230,724

47
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2024 31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2024 31
402,643 0.20
2024 31 2023 10 30
1.00
B3]
23 90 15
3]
H 15

10
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https://www.blackrock.com/cash/en-Im/client-reporting

0.25
0.75
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2024 31
2024 31
2024 30
2024 31
.661650 .661050
.747077 . 748475
.168293 .165705
.145986 .145734
.088249 .086250
.274150 .273451
.000063 .000063
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0.006820 0.006841
0.058213 0.058222
0.748111 0.748307
0.031949 0.031949

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(¢
2024 31

(h
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Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

0.33

0.75
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(o

0.1667 1.00

(c
2023 19 10 30
1.526
2023

2023 31

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2024 31

2024 31

65,591
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2019

2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01
31

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2024 31
40,000,000 2024 31
0.15
0.90
13
14
2024 31

425,814
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2024 23
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2024
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Fpamhealia lod neyastinanis a0kl Ak VAT ET0ESS 156 707 LATEEIE 1 NEDE 00 OdHl
Rscastealtia fon Fund units subsoribed M) BEOT3 1 ] ST 315 (e L) .0
Lt vsa sl e escialion oan
Cipem fosrwan o Fonsign aoochang s [ninsaclions Hdy 51383 51.3&3
St al driaiioed valisn §493 L L]
CHiven arisels 2} a0 T4 51 G 576 &1 757 A6 0TG
Totnl assets 4,859,102 118 03,077,043 U7 E00TE 218304915 3913617238 pralll
Liabsliths
Cah owed 1o bank Haj 189357 181.3r7
Pasyabla lor wnisirmonls parchasod Jla) 1400 155 48 Bt 785 438 FI2RETT 1347 140 50
Payyalda o Fund waBs fedooimed HNa) 109573 157 o53 41,830
Dt orsds parvaltis e 10 F 32 Fn Ll
L el e o it s a6
Ciper b Poalgrn aschang e I ans acton s Ad) 1755 1,755
S al neiled valisn ) 2968 2568
Agcrdim] sopeayies mnd oifor BabiEes S BE TR B89 402 1.3 504 = B0 T o D 5 et
Total lakdtties 1,420,443, 35T 738,773 8,118,072 8,121,213 1401450 283 22,548
Todal net sadsis 3408 T4IEN 300,240,270 SE9 153,304 207,183,702 2512088 055 —

Tty Pt Best erarvd e Siiing Dhe o, sea Males 1 Mo usthed detalls
= ahialion basnd on s iged ool mathod . Plosse rador o node 2lad

Approved on behall of the Board

-

,}.' :,.-:; o %r"'c {"ﬁ-éf"ﬁ/

Bam|amah Gredson Jomnne Fitzgerald
Diirectar Director
Diate 23 April 2024 Date 23 Aprl 2024

The notes on pages 42 to 47 form an integral pact of these financipl stalements.
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2024

Cormenoy 3 oy X H Jammry 205
Global Alocation Pertlalic
Tolal net asscls Uz 300,340,270 399,251,840 43477140
Ml 352 vl o
A Clais mom- Snboing unil =D 1956 18407 a5y
A Clags non-dginboing und 8L0 AD 2065 19.58 24
A Clams non-fginbitmg und JFY J7Y 120,26 1823 13249
Global Equity Incame Penfalis
Telal net sssels UsD IB0.152.304 95074553 P1ETIET
bl etk valiip bod
A Class diginbuting und UED 1% 42 1579 1Fag
F Class distritsding und W=D 20,63 12 2018

Incomo Strotogios Fortlolia
Total net ossels usD 207183, 102 220827293 270,553,459
Hal mvsad valisa per

A Class disnibuting undl LD 545 =07 4T
A Class distributing unil SGD hedgad 60 8 .34 245 U[FR T
AD Class digiribuling urd L0 9 a6s @34
B CEass disinbuting und s 516 5408 547
& Class dishribud ing und LED 8. a0s aTE
J Glass digh nbuling unit UED 519 500 53
Super Money Market Fund 't
Tolal net aescls Uz 2542088 085 1,789,350, 502 2270560, 504
Med asssl valua per
Commen digiribuling ung UED | () 100 500
Current distritading und LED 104 104 100
Instutional | digébul ing urit LED 100 10 104

World Inceme Portfolis™
Tolal nat assols Ls0 —_ 16,522. 728 2ETREIIT
Mol ateal valug pod

A Clariss di stributing wnll UsD - 1048 L RE]
A Chass di MO TS ar5
A Class 3 sinbutineg o ELR 829 @13

™M Super Monay Markst Fund publishes constant Ke s LEED 1 and effactivg | July 2013 i classified as shor {erm Pubbe Detd Conglant Nt Assel Valus Moray
Markal Fund Pleass rafer 1o Nola 2{a)
B Tha Postfolio amsinaled during 1ha yaar, dei Mole 1 for furthar delais

T Nodas o0 pagss &2 10 &7 Form h tegeal part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12]  BlackRock Global Investment Sories
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2024

Note Sorien Combined
ush usp
Wot naseds of the boginning of the yoar 2434 035 004 310,251 540
Ines aitie
B ool B2,540 743 — T

Bond @nd kaan Inbiress B S56500 = =
Dividerde (el of wilblolding 1ax) Azl SAH 06 8RR T2
Char ncomig 84 240 — —
Todal Incoms 131,095 620 — 8354, 789
Expenses

Bark Flaras! Hop 9 h88

Managam el s 4 1, Fa

Distsbution [oas 4 6 (R 246

Adménigiradion foos [ bra ]

A Taas r 4 515

Lodgal fads rraz

Frinting and other reporing fees 165 562

E 10 ITEOZ

Coordination fags 5 G2 A9

Caposflany Tisas i T

Tranalar agant faas Fdd 7T

Loan commifment foas - [ ¥ — —
Miscolianedas foas Hal TEEATY B 144 PEESD
Todal expors es befors redmb uns emsnt 0,485 414 4 858 §3s ST
Roimburgament of apenses q 243437 — =

Tolad expens os after reimbursoment 20234977 4 458 435 [ ST
Wt dnvwosbroent incomsdelicil) 111,770 843 (4,894,535 4,707 458

Raakzed gamn on vestesanls {T 036255 T.50E 3l T4 0455

Focliad (los Irvvtisdim anls Haj2 b} [ 19, 5% 4027 1,422 201} (TS D)
Ml raalised gaind]ass) on

Folg arvendes ad lonwand lofEghn ach i B et el Hdd el (5 10 28] {2 496 59) [Tad aaa)
Swvap bransed ong 2id} 7115 &) A

Het realisod gaintloss) for the year (TATE G2 §E88 i 1,183,414}
Changs in unraalised appraciallon on veEments 4T 552547 15 S 15 30075 556

Change in undsalitoed (depradation) on ivdadm ents gasmaim 1824 01} EABT TR
Ml changs in untealised apprecabiond Sepraciation) on

Foragn cutences. rd fonward fofg n achandgs rareachions 23,20} e (1,503} {3804y
Swap brargsdong 20} {TA4T) - —

Wet change in unrealised appreciationfideprecial bon) for the year 55 234 449 15473 499 28,508 32T

Inecreps o Dipenroase im el assots os o rosull of operations 160,528 184 14,244 2602 32,142 344

Mevements bn unil capital

Ml recolpls a8 & redul of 15sue of wdld 21k} A 450, TR 481 005 RS 2THABI T

Mal paymenls a8 N resull of repurcnass of unis 2k {3502 306,147 (42232 57T} (14 448 505y
Inezrgars e Desroass) Im ned a3sots o & reslt of movermaents In unit capital AT 45T 314 (33,952,778 264048285
Dt ol diclarid 1t (113,278, 251) 5, 10 EET)

Het assels af tho ond of tho year 3,408 74320 100,540,270 189,122,304

T Nodas o0 pagss &2 10 &7 Form h tegeal part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual report and audited financial stalements  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2024 continued

Incoeme Strabegies Super Money
PorSiclio Bkt Fund
ush usD
Nt asadls of tho beginndng of Bhe year EI0.8IT.293 1,760,359, 993 16,532,736
Incoms
Blari; irtonse o 2es &3 4B dsT7 —
Bond End boan Inberes s 16,432.965 4T 1235 .50 -
Cevicends {nat of wilbiedding tas) o - — A36 480
Chhar incomig — B4 M0 r
Todal bncame 16.403.224 109,688,288 asin
Exponses
Blani; inforasl 2y o= i s
Managernent faes 4 1,244 175 ERRET
Distsbudion e d 1,044 272 [ R b]
Admantgration feas ] 1Ga 319 36110
Aot N5 v 0473 11,905
Lo fas BXAT4 B9438
Frirking and olhesr regrring feas ST EIF — 24758
Taoss 10 104 297 I27 856 -
Coordinalion faas 5 51841 525 183 ]
Dpoafary [t & 1hE 8 T, ree PR
Transfor agent foos PEAE B 003 £ B
Loan cpmmiment faas 12 B BA% —_ —_
Srzcaltanadus fides Fai, 12,772 &, 008 82,350
Todal expors os befors redmb ursermsant 2087838 11,558 444 363,857
Rombursament of sxpenses q = 158 547 BE 230
Tolal expors os after reimbursamant ZHETEN 44, 39%,933 ITTET
ot inwostrwnt Incomadolicit) 13505388 8,288,322 148,245
Faabiod Galn of st anld Hal s) 18mTNn 123 %]
Foabiad {loss) on vesiments Ha).2{b) (O ETE 44T e (L ASE T4
Ml raalised galndloss) on
Faraign auftendas and forward fofaign achandgs hrantsclions 1, 2a) 11 4 3nE) - (1 E2ST)
Swap trarsadions 24} TaE — —_
Mot roalised gaini{loss) for the year (6.882.92¢) — {3,007.08590
Changa in unraalived apprecialion on iIvestmenls 1476 GBS - -
Chang b und aalised [daprod 8en) on Fvashs st B 465 £14 — 2083573
Hal changs in unrealised appredabions dapredalion) on
Foreon aavences and lorward forsgn axchangs ransaeticns. 2idd 2ed tHEsds - J.EEE
Swap arasdions 2{db {T AT
Wet change in unrealised spprociation(depreciotion) for the year 10,07 054 — 20866
Increas e {Decroass) In mol axsots o5 o rosull of oparations 16,718, 4540 8,288,322 ([#62.155)
Movomonds in unit copital
Ml racoipls a8 @ rasul of Isgus of wlls amp 13,021 BES 4059, 176, 126 a0
Ml paymants a5 & resull of repurchass of unds 2{Hk [33, 725 480 U5 k06 488 Ty (R T R ET]
Ineresna{Decroass) im el assats o8 & resall of movements in unit capital (20,703,704 T2, TOT 363 (15,438,748}
Dévdends doclarsd 18 [B658& 251) (o Jes 12 [rrd k]
Het asaods of the ond of tho year 0T 183, 702 2.542,068,955 —

U Tha Portiolo farminaled dunng (e yaar 2ae Mola 1 for furihar dalabs

The noles on pages &2 10 &7 Form an begeal part of Tem Bnanaal o oieman's

[14] BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Saries
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2024

Uiy cudsfanding
mi the end
of the year

Global Aocation Pertalia
B Clags non-dis nbul 1

A Clags non-dig Abuling urit 35 a1 i TEd THY i i L] 2562074

Glabal Equity Inceme Portfolia

vl 1911784 376 T

A Clags disinBauling
F Class dgintas

Inszcvy Shralegies Portlolis
A Class distnbuling ued

bags disinbal g unll D00 hedged

LR
L% - 518
L - .
a0, 528 ATHT 2]
Supor Monoy Market Fund
Fommaon g und e v e

Currerd digtritruling und I 13 arr 1804 dad 4
inshtuttonal | dig biding unl 1,040 463 311 40,713,443 17,230,724

Waorld Inceme Portfolia’™
A Class

s disirtuling BRZ 1 151

Tha Portfolls famainaled during The vear sae Mole 1 Tarfurthar dalals

T Nodas o0 pagess &2 10 &7 Form &h tegeal part of T Bnanaal o elsmants
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investment Semes {the “Fund™) is a fonds
commun de placement lotimed under the kws of the Grand
Dy of Luembourg. The Fund is set up onder Past 1 of the
law of 17 December 201 0 refaling to underakings for colledive
Investmem as amended {the “2010 L aw”). Tha Fund qualiies as
an alternative imvestment fund (A8 7 in acoordance with
Directive 2011/B1/EL of the European Parliamant and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investmient Fund
Managers CAIFMD® and the Luxembouy law of 12 July

2013 on altesnative imvestment und mansgens a5 amended (he
2013 Law”)

The: Management Company appointed BlackRock Assat
Management leedand Limdled {the “AIFM®) as the alternaiive
investmen fund manager The AIFM will provide and procuie
the prowision of imvestment managemem services, mduding
porthalio and nsk managenent fundions, bor the Fund. The
AIFM is entiled 1o delegale s fundions, powers, disoreions,
duties and obligations, subject to AIFMD requirements

As al 31 January 2024, the Fund olfered units in four Portlolios,
Global Alacation Porliolio, Global Equilty Income Pordolio,
Income Strategles Portbolio, Super Money Markel Fund {each @
P lodias™ and colbeclively the Porbolios®). Each Portlclio has
different investment objectives and inests in diflfanent ypes of
investimens.

Each Peelfolio is a separale pool of assets and 15 represented
by separate units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
classes as detalled on page 51

The dasses of units have squivalent rights in the Portiolios bal
carry dillerent leatures and charging strudures, which are more
fulty desobed in the Fund's Prospedus.

Slgnificant events during the year

+ Effective 30 October 2023, the World Incoms: Portlolio was
Legrmanaled

= Effective 25 April 2073, Arendt & Medernach SA was
appointed as legal advser

Z Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Policles

Thee linancial statements have been prepared in acoord ance
with genarally accepled acoounting principles in Lusembourg
and with the legal and requlalony requirements relating (o the
preparation of the finandal stalements as prescribed by the
Lugembourg authorties for Luxembourg investment companies
and include the follewing significant aceounting policies

{a@) Valuation of Irvestiments and Cther Assels
The Fundd's ivestments and other assels are valued as lollows:
Hon-Money Market Portfolios

= Term loans are il listed on any securilies exchange. In
delenmmining the Net Assed Value (TNAVT the Portfolio
ulilises the valuations of term loans lurmished by a pricing

[42] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sorios

service approved by the AIFM. The pricing sesvice typically
values term kpans al the bid price when quotalions are
readily avallable. Temn loans lor which quotalions are nol
readily avallable are valued at fair markel value on a
consislent basks as delenmimed by the pricing senvice using
pricing matrices to delermine valuations. The procedures of
the pricing services and is evaluations are reviewed by (he
Investment Adviser of the relevant Portfiolio (the “Investiment
Adviser’y under the general supervision of the AIFM. The
AIFM has determined in good Faith thal the use of & pricing
service isa Falr method of delermining the valuation of term
loans;

Poatlolio secunfies consisiing of equilies, bonds and olher
debt instruments (other than shorl -term obligations. but
Inchuding lsted issues) may be valuad on the basis of pricas
furnished by one of more pacing services which determine
pricas lor normal, Instildional-size rading units of such
secunties using markel information, ravsadions for
comparatle seaumies and varous relatonships belwean
securies thal are generally recognised by institutional
lradders,

Pogtbolio secumties that ane listed on stock exchanges o
traded on other regulated markels ane valued al the last
kiown paice on such echanges oF markels as ol the cose
of the business day mediately preceding the valwation
date with the exception of Global Equity Inoome Portfolio los
which securilies are valued al the valuation date al the last
kncien patce as of 4 00 pn. Luxemboung e {"4PM

CET  on, in each case, the Relevant Time™). If there are no
such sales of aparticular secamity, the value of such secarity
will e the kst available bid price of the Redevan! Time o, in
certan dicumstances, such portfolio seanities are valued at
the last sale pice on the exchange thal 15 the primary market
for such sscuriies, or the last quobed bid price bor thoss
securities for which the Over-the-Counter {OTCT) market
such as NASDAG, is the primary maekel bor isted secunlies,

Imvesstmients in open-ended aollective imeestment schemmes
are valied on the bass of the ksl avallable ret assel valie
of the units of such colbective investmem scheme;

Fed ncome secunties that are nol Bsted on stook
exchanges or raded on other regulated markels are valued
al the last available bad price of vield equivalents ofdained
from one or mdre dealers of pricig sevices, Secunies
traded in the OTC market are valued al the last available bad
price. In cages where securities ae raded on more than one
exchargge, lhe securities are valued on the exchange
designated by o under the diredion of the AIFM as the
prirmary markel. Portiolio secunities thal are traded bothin
the OTC marked and on a stock exchange are vabued
acording tothe beoadest and most representalive markel

Whien marked quolations are nol readily avaikable or the
AIFM determines thal the independent marke quotation
does not reflect fair marked value. the AIFM will, i
acmordance with applicable laws. determine a falr markel
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

value for thal assded o lability, When delermining the price for
such an assel or kabilily, the AIFM may use coneor more of &
vagtely of labr valuation meihodologies (depending on lactors
Inchuding the assel type). The AIFM might, for examgle, price
the assel based on the onginal aost of the investiment of it
migghl wse propuetary of third-paty medels. including models
that redy upon direct portifolic management picdng inputs and
which refled the sipnificance altribuled 1o the vanous fadlors
by considered by the AIFM when 8 values the assel
andior habdlity, as well &3 cerlain assumplions. The AlFM
rright also use prices of acual, executed, histoncal
ransacions in the assal andior labilty (or related or
comparable assels andion labilities) a5 a basks lor valiation
o even use_ where appropriale, an appralsal by a third party
experienced in the valuation of similar assels and/fon
liabdlilies.

As al 31 January 2024, the adjusted falr value appliad Lo carlain
seciiiies 15 disdosed in the lable below

ol Rl
Bawels

020

Fair vakan

Currency

Irecoime Slrbeghes Porfolo D akEa3

Pleswse peder to the Portfolio ol Invesiments section bor further
detalls of the securnties.

World Income Portfolio

As al 31 January 2024, the Wourld Income Porticlio {lerminated
o 30 October 2023) held open illiquid positions, which together
accounted for less than 1.00% of the net assel value of the
Portfolio @ al the kast Valuation Point prior o Fund's date of
termination. i the Miquid securities are subsequently disposed
of or avalue is realised, this will be distributed to the
shareholders of the respective Funds proporlicnate lo eadch
shareholbders holding in the Fund as & the date of termination,

Super Money Market Fund

* The AIFM has established procedues designed 1o stabilise, o
T extent reasonabdy possible and in accordance with the
Money Markel Funds Regulalion {ihe "MMFRT). the Super
Money Markel Fund's price per unil as cormputed for the
purpose of subscriptions and redempions 2l USD 1 {the
“romvslanl NAVTY . NAY 1S rounded 1o the neansst pescentadge
pednt. o1 its equivalent in currency lerms:

= The Portfolio's underlying securities and money market
instrumentis are valued based upon their amorlised cost This
imvolves valumg an instrument al ils cost and theraafer
assuming a constant amortisation 1o matunily of any discoun
of premiuinn, regardbess of the inpad of fuctieating inlerest
rales on the marked value of the instruments. While this
method provides certamnty in valualion, | may result in penods
during which valee_ as delermined by amorised cosl, is
higher or lower than the price the Super Money Market Fund
would receie if it sold the instrurment;

= The Podtfolio is dassified as a short term Public Debd CNAY
MMF and cormplies wilh the requirerments under MMFR. As a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prudent and
rigorous lquidity managament proceduras lo ansure
complianca with amy liquidity thresholds applicable 1o the
Poortiolio:;

Tor assess whether the assets of the Portlolio are sulliciently
liquid b meed reasonatdy loresecatde redemplions and nol
fowce assels from being lquidatled st discounted prices, the
volatility of the Portfolio’s assels is requently monitored . The
AIFM may also apply one o more of Lhe following messures:

= lirnposing bquidty fees on redemptions thatl adequatehy
reflect the cost o the Portfolio of achieving bquedity and
ensure thal the withelders who remain in the redevant
Porttolio are not unfairly disadvantaged when olher unit
holders redesm thelr units duing the period,

i, within a pericd of 90 days, the lotal duration of
suspensions eceeds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall aulomalically cease ko be a short-term Public
Dbt CNAY MMF and the AIFM shall nform unitholders of
s facl;

alter the Board of Diredctors of the Management Cormpany
of the Portfolio has determined its oourse of adion with
tegard to above apoinls, it shall premply provide details of
i3 decision 1o the competent authority of the Portiolio:

irjrersiing redemplion gates thal limi the amadnt of waits o
b redessmed on any one working day o @ mesdmum of
10% of the units of the Postlolio lor aiy pefiod up 1o

15 working days;

= Imnpersing a suspension of redemmplions lor any penod o up
1o 15 working days, of

= Lakireg no immediate adion other than fulfling the obligation
I dovan in Artiche: 24 (2} of the MMFR

The Por tlolio caloulates ashadow NAY whereby umde bying
securiibes and money marked ingiuments are valued based
Up=on @ o K-Lo-marked pace. In compliance with MMFR
reuirements, the diffesence between the comstant NAY pes
unit and the NAY per unit calculated wsing mark-to-market 1s
rondlored and published daily on the websilte of the MMF:
hitps:ifwww blackrock comcashiendmiclient 4 eporting

All Portfollos
= Cash s valued al its nomenal armount:

* Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements
are: valued at cost plus aociued interest. Recsvable and
payable balances ielated 1o fepuichase agqreemens and
rewerse repurchase agrecments are induded in the Statement
of Met Assels respedively unded the caplions Recetvable bor
investmems sold” and Payable for invesiments purchased”.
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments s
incleded in the Statemant of Nel Assets under the caplion
“Interest and dvidends recervable™

= Liquid aszels such as money makel nstrunments are valued
oft an amer lised ool basis;

Annual report and audited financial stalements  [43]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= Assels which indude, in particula inlerest and dividends
mecevable, receivable for investments sobd and recebvable for
Furd units subsaibed are valued al nominal value,

= Lizbilitbes which indude, m particularn, payable for mvestiments
puirchased . payable lor Fuind unils redesmed, e and
dividends payabde are valued al nominal value,

= The linandal stalemants have been prepared on a going
concem basis of acoounting, acep for the World Incoms
Porticlio, which was pul inio lermination.

(b} Realsed gains and losses on Invesiments

Realised gaing and lesses on sales of ivestinents heve been
determined on the basis of the average cost mathod

(e} IncomeExpense from Investments

Thee Fund takes credit fos inconme from its investments on the
forlierirny basis:

Intarasl income s accmed dally and includes the amorntsation
on a straighl-Bne basis of premumes and accretion of
discounts:

bank interest 1s recognised en an accuals basis and incudes
interest income from reverse repurchass aresments:

dividend incoimes is accrued on the ecdividend date and is
ghown nel of wilkholdmg Lax:

incoane from reverse repurchase ransacions iz induded in
ihe Stalemen of Operations under the caplion "Bank
Ilesrest”

= an imerest rale ditferential CIRDT) ks the difference in inlerest
rales bedween two similar interest beaning securilies
which arises from the currency hedging process eq. i the
1 month interest rate on LSO s 0.25% and on AUDNL s 1%,
then the implad IRD s 0.75%. Traders in the foreign
exchang e mad kel use IRD's when pricing forward exchangs
rates. IRDYs can be positve, nil of negative, Indusion of RDYs
in dividends may constilule a payment from capdlal in some
jurisdictions IR is recorded a5 miscellansous fees in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Mel Assels.

{d) Finandial Denvalive Insliuments

Dusing the year the Fund has entered into a number of forward
forekgn exchange ransacions and lulures conliacks. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair rmaekel value to close the
coniracis on the accounting date. Surplesesideficils ansing from
these and closed unsellled contracts are taken Lo unrealised
apprecalion/(depredation} and are indudad under assels or
liabililbes {as appropmate) in the Statement of Nel Assets. The
nel change in unrealised appredation or depreciation and the
nel realized gains of keeses on sellement oF closing
transactions of forward foreign exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are gresented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Net Assels,

Dumng the vear the Fund has entered inlo swap tansacions (o
esxcchange the relurn genarated by one mstrument for the retum
generated by another investment. The Fund can wrile credi
defaull swaps ("CDET and purchase COS When the Fund
wriles andior purchases a CDS, aseries of premiums is paid o

[44] BlackRock Global Imvesiment Sarios

of patd by the Fund, in returm for a payment contingent on a
credit event {predefined in the agreement). The premivms are
inchuded in the cost of COS. Where possible, swaps are marked
o man kel based upon dadly prices oblained from thied party
pricaneg agents and verilad agains the actual meakel meker.
Whane such qualalions are nol avallable swaps are poced
based upon dady quolations from the men kel maker In both
cases changes in quolations are reoorded as nel change in
unrealised appredation or depredation in the Statement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assels. Net realised gains o
losses on malutily or lermination of the swaps and the Inlerest
earmed in relalion o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Netl Assets.

Each Postfolico mey sell call options and purchase pul oplions on
slock indices 1o seek 1o hedge portfolio sccunes against the
impad of anticipated general price declines in equily markets of
specilic ndustry sedors thereol, Options on ndices are similar
Lo options on securilies excoepl thal on exordse of assknmeant,
the parties 1o e conlradt pay of receive an amount of cash
equal to the diff erence betwesn the dosing value of the inde
and the exercige piice of the oplion limes 3 specified multiple
The effectivencss of a hedge employing stock index options will
depend primanily on the degres of correlation belween
rcvesnents in the value of the index undeslying the oplion and
in the portion of the postfolio being hedged . Among olter
ladors, ihe degree of corelalion with resped to convertible
securities will be affected by the degres o which the marke
value of porifolio securiiles is aiinbutable o ther conversion
vaue The nel change in unrealised appredalion of depreciation
and the ped realised galns of bsses on exXpiialion of cloging
wanmsadions of oplions are presented in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

{e) Foreign Exchanges

The costof investments in arrencies other than the currency of
dencmination of the respedive Fortfolio has besn translated al
the: rates of ecchange mling af ihe time of purchase Markel
vaue of invesiments and other assels m aurrencees other than
the ewrency of demomination of the respective Portiolio have
been ranslated & the exchange rale prevailing &l the Portiolos
valualion point in Luxembourg as at 31 January 2024 The net
change in unreslised apprecialion or depreciation and the net
reallsed gains of losses on disposal of seltlement of olher
assels or habdliltes in currencies other than the anrency of
denormination of the respedive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels.

oo and expenses in aurrencies ofher than the carrendcy of
dencmination of the respective Portfolio have been iranslaled at
the rates of exchange prevalling on ransacdion date

Different exchange rates are resuling from the pridng malrx
and different valuation points between the different Porifolios, In
the bedow table, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2024 are presented bor Global Allocation Por tfolio and Global

E quity Income Portfobo, the SPM CET exchange rales on

30 January 2024 are presented for Income Strategies Portfolio
and Supss Money Market Fund,

Thee lodlowing exchande rales were used o Uanskale the
Investmenis and olher assels and olher labdlities for all
Potiolios denominated n cumencies olher than the base
currency of the respedive Portiolio as at 31 January 2004
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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(I} Combined Financial Statements

The Combined Financial Sialements of the Fund are expressed
in USD and include the tolal of the Inandal stalements of the
different Por ifolios.

{0y Deferred Crganisational Expenses

Deferred organtsalional expenses 2 e capilalised and are

ame lised on a straighi-line basis over a five year pesiod. As &l
31 January 2024, all Pourtfolios had fully amortised their deferred
ofganisational expenses

{h Icoine Equalisaticn

Each Perlfolio follows the accounting pradice of equalisation (o
present the undistiibuted income per unit from flucluating solely
bw remson of subscriptions and redemplions of s umls. This is
accomplished by mantaining an equalisation account for the
relevanl Portfolio. The equalisation account is aediled with thal
pertion of the prooseds of subsaribed units representing the net
undistnbuted income per unit of thoze units, and is debited wilth
thad portion of any redermplion paymen representing el
undistnbuted income per unit of the redesmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Porticlio may consist of amounts
presously crediled 1o the equalisation account. The yield
reported lo mvestors will ndude amounts pald from net income
as well as any amount pald frorm the equalisation account

The Income Equalisation is induded in the Movemments in unit
capital in the Statermant of Operalions and Changes in Nel
Assetls

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a) Management Company

BlackRock Fund Management Company SA. is the
Management Company of the Fund. Purseant tothe
Managemenl Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portlolios for the exdlusive
acoount of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and sudh
other agents as appropriate. nduding Distributors of the Fund’s
Uinéis in and oulside Japan are appeinted by the Management
Company. The Managemenl Company has deegated the
appointrent of Distritanors. to the Principal Distibator

BlackRock Fumd Managemenl Company SA. is a wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and 15 regulated by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier ("CS3F")

(b) AIFM

The Managemenl Company has appoinled BlackRock Assel
Managemenl Ireland Limiled as the allernalive imnvestmeant fund
manager o provide and procure the provision of ivestment
ranagenenl seivices, induding portiolio and nsk ranagement
furctions, for the: Fund within the msaning of the AFMD. The
AIFM is entiled 1o dedagate i fundong, powers, diserelions,
duties and obligations, subjed o AIFMD requirements.

The AIFM is & wholly cwned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authorisesd by the Central Bank of Ireland

Theix AIFM 12 pald out of the management fee due o the
Management Company, as cuthined in Note 4

{e} Imvesiment Advisers

Subged o the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the
Potfolios receives iinvestiment advisory services liom the
Irvesstnent Advisers

Imeextmeend Adviser

Giokal Allocation Podlola
Sabal Equity incoms Poetl ol
income Srafepss Porfiobo
Super Money harkel Fund

EfackRock Japan Co., Lid

BlachFock Irvest merl Management (UK Limfad
Blsckock Francial Manapemeant, Inc

Biackfock Francal Mensgement, Inc

The Ivvestmenlt Advisers form parl of the BlackRock Group

The Investment Advisers ase each pald out of the management
fee due ko lhe Management Company, as cutlined in Nole 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees

(a) Managemean lees

Dumineg the year, the Fund pald management lees (o the
Management Company

The level of management fee varles from 0.33% 1o 0.75% per
annum of the NAY, with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
nol pegy @ management faa bul rather afee o the Investrment
Adviser or alliliales imder a separala aqreament, The level of
management fee vares according to which Poriiolio and unil
class the lmvestor Buys. These fees acorue dally. are based on
the: NAY of the rebevant Portiolio and are paid monthly, The
Fund's AlFM and Inestment Adviser fees e bome by the
Managenwent Company and paid through the managenent fee

(b Distribution fees

The Managemen Company has also entered into a Distribution
Agreerment wilh BElackRock Investiment Managemsnl

(UK} Limdted {the "Principal Disinbutor”). The Princapal
Distritator may conduds contraciual arrandgements with cernlain
Disstribanors for the digtribution of units outside the LS such as
the Japanese Distibutors {as disclosed on pages 3 o 4)

The level of distribastion fee vagies from O A8E7% to 1.00% per
annum ol the MAY, with the exception of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Institutional | uns, which do not pay a disinbution
fee The level of disinbution fee vanes according to which
Portiolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fess acoue
dally, are based on the NAY of the rdevant Portiolio and are
paic] quartenly

Annual report and audited financial stsloments  [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The: manzgement and distrbution lees per unil dass for each
Pertholio are disclosed in dedail in the Fund's Prospecius

(e} Subskdylcap

Frewn 19 Jume (o 30 Oclobes 2023 there had bean a
subsidy/cap on all expenses in place for the World Income
Pestiolio. The level of the subsidyicap iz 15269 per annum of
[he MAW

Since 1 Februaey 2073, there had been a BlackRock Operalions
(Lucembourg) Sa ol (BROL") fes wabver in place for the Super
Meaiey Marked Fund's Cormmon, Current and Insifulionsal | units
The lee wabvers have been stopped on 31 May 2023

5. Coordination Fees

The Managament Company has antered inlo an agresment with
BROL pursuant 1o which BROL, under the direction of the Board
of Diresclers of the Management Compainy, provides. cerfain
corporate and adminkstrative coordination serices on behall of
th Fund

The coordination fes rate is 0.025% of the average dally NAY of
the Fund {excluding Class F units), per anmm.

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Sireet Bank
International GabH, Litemboiing Branch, 49_ avenue JF
Kemnedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Administrative
Agent in Luxembourg 1o assist the Managemen!l Company al its
prineipal office in Luxernbowg with geneal sdministrative Lasks
prsunt o the Administration Agreemenl, againd changing
usual fees for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Dedailed balow are the fees paid to Dedoatte Audit 5.4 ol for the
year ended 31 January 2024

Auadd and s relabed sonsices fadipdng WATH 8550
Hon-audd senices -

8. Depositary Fees

The: Management Company has entiersd info the Depositary
Agreement with the Deposilary, Stale Streel Bank international
GmbH, Lugembourng Brandh. Thig agreement was amendied
effedive 17 January 2019 in ne with the appointment of the
AlFM

The Deposilary Agreament provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts of hald in
any operating accounis for expensas or dividend disbursement
acoounts {which may be maintained a1 other banks), ane to be
held by o to the cader ol the Depositary provided that the
Managemenl Company may pace cash in overnight call
accounts oron lerm deposit with oiher banks appeoved by the
Deposilary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Deposilary s responsible fon the collection of principal and
income en, and the payment for and collecion of procesds of
secuibes boughl and sold for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance wilh AIFMD.
the Depositany's role pursuant to AIFME enhances Linghold er
pratecton and includes the responsibility 1o safekeap the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all finanoaal mstroments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundion™)

[48]  BilackRock Global Invesiment Saries

The Depositary charges the Fund less bor these serices in
acoordance with its vsual rates expressed as a fradion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assels of the Fund. The
Deposiizry may appoint one of more codrespond ent banks, and
115 expeded thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund . As
part of its Salekeeping lundion, the Deposfary 1s latde o the
Fund for the: loss of linancal instruments which are held m

cirstody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ullimete holding company of the Manasgement Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizgers is BlackRock, Inc, a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA,

Dumingg the year there have been no significan bansactions.
which were oulside the oidinary course of business or which
were nol on normal aorrenercial lermes.

10, Taxes

Ul present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
liabde: to amy Lusesnboung of difary incom: of capilal gaing (ax,
nod ane dividends pald by the Fund subject to any Luxembourg
withhwolding tax. However the Fund is subject 1o a subecriplion
ta { Tz o abonnement”} of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio s the |2l day of each cdenda quarter,
in accordanoe with e 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respec of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
meaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reducead tae
of 0.01% per annum s bevied

For ihe year ended 31 January 2024, Global Allocation Portlolio
has rol paid Lusembourg faxes, as no subsoription ta is pald
on ihe assels held by ihe Portfolio in other undertakings for
collective Ivestment already subjedt to thal ax in Luxemboung.

Unider applicable forekgn tas ks, withholding taces may be
imposed on Inlerest, dvidends and capltal gains al vanous
rales.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The net income {i e, acaued interest income net of accrued
expienses) is dedared & a dvidend on each valuation date on
all units oulsianding on thal day io the Unitholders of recosd
immediabely poor 1o the daily determination of NAY per unil,
prevaded abaaya that units shall be entitled to a dividend only
frean the: day on which their subscription is settled prios 1o 12PM
Luxemnbourg time and thal units redeemed shall not be entilbed
o recedve the dally dividend dedared on the setllement day of
thesr redemglion

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

Thez net income of the redevant other Portfolios consists of

{1y nterest aocmied, discoum eamed Incuding both ariginal
issue and mearkel discount) o other income eamed, (i) less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (including management
fees). In resped of each dividend declased, the Board of
Diresctews of the Managermsal Company ey determine if, and
by wheal extent, such dividend is 1o be paid oul of undistributed
ned rvestment oo, réalised and unreslised capital gains.
respecvaly incressed or decreased by nel equalisalion aedils
or debdls
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2024, Income Stralegles Portfolio was entitled
1o & Gredit Faclity of LISD 40,000 000 from Stale Streel Bank
and Trust Company. No portion of the aedt Facility was used
during the year ended 31 January 2024

A loan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basis i relation 1o
this credit Faality which is inclwded in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Ned Asseds. Thie loan commilment
fee consigs of 015% charged on the unusad portion of the
wredil facilily and the Federal Funds Effedive Rate of the
Uvernaghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghes) +
0 90% margmn spread on the used porticn of the aedil Facilily

The commitmendt fee is disclosed in the Statemeant of
Operations under the caplion Loan commiment fees”

13, Financial Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portbolios may use derivalives (o hedge marks and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio
rrsnacerment

The use of derivatives may expose the Forifobios to a higher
deqgres of sk, In particular. dervative conlrads can be highly
volalile, and the amownt of mitial margin is generally smeall
resladive to the sire of the aontrad so that transacdions ane
geared. A relatively small markel movement may have a
pelentially larger impad on desivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles.

Prlesse reter 1o the Portlolio o Investments section bor more
delals

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve ils Invesimenl objeciive, a Portiolo will inour
Iramaactions costs in refation (o trading adivity on s Portiolio of
Imvestments. Discosed in the table below are separately
identfiable ransacion costs incurred by each Porifolio for the
yvear ended 31 January 2024, Thaese include commission cosis,
setllement fees and broker lees.

Tesnametion eosls

Peatiobas

ol Allsestion Ponfoke UED -
ot Equity Incomes Poticho =D e5a4
Ireomd Straligees Podlalio 15D
St Mooy Marksl Fund L]

O Tramaction coshs

World Incoms Porffioba

) =

Mol &l ransaction cosls are separalely ienlifiable. For swaps,
forwan d loresgn axchange iransadions, fulwes conlracds,
oplions and swaplions, transaclion costs are incuded in the
purchase and salbes price of the vestment. Whilst nol
separately identifiable these Iransaction msis are caplured
within the peformance of each Portlobo. Markel impad costs
are nod separately identifiable and are therelore also nol
digchosed in the abewss Labbe

15. Amounts due fromfto broker

The Porllolios trade dedvalives with a range of counterparies.
The coumerpanies 1o forward foreign exchange transactions
aind saap ransacions ane shown in the Portlolio of
Invesimenls.

Cash oollateral is pald o recerved on swaps 1o oover any
exposure by the coumerpany to the Fund or by the Fund 1o the
conmmberparly.

Due fromito Broker on the Salement of Mel Assals consi=ts of
cash oollateral and mergin pakdiecotved [om the Fund's
clearing brokers and various counlerparties

Futims Contach
dus o broder

Fuhes Contmch
e Trorm beolsi

Purtfalia

ooy

ncoma Sirdeges Porfolo D =7

16. Subsequent events
Effedive 2 February 20024, Geoffrey Haddiffe resigned as
Diredor of the Board of the Managamenl Company

Effedive 27 Febvuary 2024, Benjamin Gregson was appoinled
as a Direcdor of the Board of 1he Management Company.

Theisrez hawa Diesn 1o cther events subsequent to the Anandal
yvear end, and up lo the date of the approval of the financal
statements, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors of the
Management Company may have had a material impact on the
firancial stadements for the inandal year ended 31 January
2024

17. Approval date

The inancial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors of the Managermenl Company on 23 Apal 2024

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [47]
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In lssue & Class
A atl 31 January 2024, the Fund offers the following umil "+ Celass ghainbel
clagses Common Units

I|_|I

i

F ¢ |.]"!=
a53 dalritubn
Ins! rlullc-nal 1 ertﬂ
malifiuional iribuling unilin
l"h'sq.

1335 Gusiribuhng i

vastable 10 reiiutional

Unit Classes Launched
There were no unit dasses launched durng the yess

Unit Classes Closed

Annual report and audited financial stalements [51]
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2025
4,165,673,355 599,315,426
1,334,364,644 191,975,041
2,831,308,711 407,340,384
416,580 59,933
2,154,767,506 310,006,401
676,124,625 97,274,050
416,580
2,154,767,506
676,124,625
1.00 144
1.00 144
1.00 144
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50 7,194 2025
12.5 1,798 40,000

24

2019 17 2019 17
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2025

Joanne Fitzgerald 0
Leon Schwab 0
Benjamin Gregson

0
Svetlana Butvina 0
Jonathan Griffin 0
Richard Gardner 0

_ 0
Michael Renner
1990

0

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1I.
Deloitte

Audit S.a r.l.
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2025

3,935,620,333.30
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38 59

2025 30

143.87

23 103
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2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

923 132,792 881 126,749

11 8,549 1,229,945 4,989 717,767
1,899 273,209 1,068 153,653

10,448 1,503,154 6,057 871,421

11,371 1,635,946 6,938 998,170

12 500 71,935 500 71,935
13 286 41,147 199 28,630
3,189 458,801 2,818 405,426

3,975 571,883 3,517 505,991

14 7,396 1,064,063 3,421 492,179
11,371 1,635,946 6,938 998,170

2025 23

17 32

137/266



17

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31

2024 2023
21,747 3,128,741 17,714 2,548,513
(21,019)  (3,024,004) (17,145)  (2.466,651)
728 104,737 569 81,862
(83) (11,941) (141) (20,286)
645 92,796 428 61,576
42 6,043 39 5,611
(19) (2,734) 1 144
668 96,105 468 67,331
(210) (30,213) (93) (13,380)
458 65,892 375 53,951

32

138/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31
2024 500 199 2,818 3,517
_ — 458 458
— — 458 458
— 87 (87) —
2024 12 31 500 286 3,189 3,975
2023 500 230 2,412 3,142
— — 375 375
— — 375 375
— (31) 31 —
2023 12 31 500 199 2,818 3,517
2024 71,935 28,630 405,426 505,991
— — 65,892 65,892
— — 65,892 65,892
— 12,517 (12,517) —
2024 12 31 71,935 41,147 458,801 571,883
2023 71,935 33,090 347,014 452,040
— — 53,951 53,951
— — 53,951 53,951
— (4,460) 4,460 —
2023 12 31 71,935 28,630 405,426 505,991

17 32
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2024 12 31
2024 2023

458 65,892 375 53,951

(25) (3,597) 7 1,007

(42) (6,043) (39) (5,611)

210 30,213 93 13,380

601 86,466 436 62,727

11 (3,560) (512,177) (1,411) (203,001)

14 3,975 571,883 788 113,370

1,016 146,172 (187) (26,904)

(210) (30,213) (93) (13,380)

806 115,959 (280) (40,284)

806 115,959 (280) (40,284)

1,068 153,653 1,355 194,944

25 3,597 Q) (1,007)

12 31 1,899 273,209 1,068 153,653

17 32
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2024 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2025 23

Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

2022
2025
2011

2011/61/
2013 12
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12

12

2024

18 2024

18 2027 18
18

142/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

143/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12
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2024 2023
21,747 17,714

2024 2023
14,375 10,294
451 370
2,312 2,463
4,609 4,587
21,747 17,714

11

2024 2023

(25) 4
65 180 Article 65(1)180(2)
2024 2023

43 43
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2024 2023
207 95
3 @
210 03
24.94 2023
2024 2023
668 468
167 117
3 €))
40 (1)
210 03
2024
15
2023 2023
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
428 405
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68 34
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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7,396 —

2023 12 31
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1,473 881

3,421 —

3,421 —
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024

31 December 31 December

2024 0z
Mole 5 i % i
Assels
Nan-current asscis
Financinl ussets i 913 $41
Current assets
I'rade and other receivables 11 T LT ER Y
Cazh and cash cyuiy alemis | Bk [ RES
10448 k57
Total assets 11.271 s, KRR
Equity and fiabilities
Equity
Shure capital 12 o0 06}
Chher reserves 13 2R 19y
Retained earnings 1159 TR
sl eyquity 31075 1507
Current liabilities
I'rade and other payvables 14 7. 3% 342
Foeil \'quil_"u and liabilities 11371 91K

[irector

Mr Henjumin @elgson
Mecctow

The notes on pages 17 10 32 firm an integral part of these financial stalements
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Mote S 000 £ 000
Revenue 4 21,747 17.714
Cuost of sales (21.00%) (17.145)
Giross profit 728 560
Administrative expenses (83) (141}
Ciperating profii 5 65 428
Finance income 42 39
Met (losses)gaing on derivative Ninancial instruments (19) 1
Profit before tax [iTis.3 468
[Nncome ax expense 8 (210 (93
Profit for the vear 458 375

The abowve results were derived wholly from continuing operations,

The notes on pages 17 1o 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Page 13
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At January 2024
Profit for the vear

Total comprehensive incomse
Transfer o other reserves

At 31 December 2024

A1 January 2023
Profit for the vear

Total compeehensive incomse
Transfer from other reserves

AL 3| December 2023

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

(87) __

Retained
Share capital Other reserves earnings
5 AHp) 5000 5 (HHy
S04 1949 2818
- 458
- 458
&7
S0 286 3189
Retained
Share capital (rther reserves ecarnings
5000 5 000 5 M
S 230 2412
- 375
- 375
(31} 31
S0 199 2,818

The notes on pages 17 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjusiments to cash flows from non-cash ftems:
Foreign exchange (gain)loss

Finance income

Income tax expense

Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Inerease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Met cash Now froim operating activities

Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 17 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
S 000 S 000
458 375
(25) 7
(42) (39)
210 93
[ 436
(3,560) (1.411)
3,975 TEE
1,016 (187)
(210) (93)
806 (280)
806 (280)
1,068 1.355
25 (0
1,899 1068
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

1 General information

The Company is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in Luxembourg.

The address of its registered office is:
35A. Avenue LF. Kennedy
Luxembourg

L-1835

Grand Duchy of Luxembourz

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 23 April 2025,

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of investment managemeni administrative services o
Luxembourg collective investment undertakings and the issue of centificated or statements of undivided
co-proprictorship interests in these funds,

The Company is registered by the Registre de Commerce et des Sociéiés and regulated by the Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier ("CSSF") . Additionally, the Company is subject to a minimum net asset
requirement imposed by the Japanese Financial Services Authority, as a resull of marketing funds in Japan. The
Company complies with the principles set out in the Association of the Luxembourg Fund Industry ("ALFI™)
Code of Conduct as updated in June 2022,

There have not been any significant changes in the Company’s principal activities in the period under review and
the directors propese that the principal activities will continue during 2025, BlackRock Global Investment
Series ("the fund™) qualifies as an alternative investment fund in accordance with Directive 200 1/61/EU of the
Evwropean Parizment and of the Council of 8 June 2001 on Alernative Investment Fumd Managers (" AIFMD™)
and the Luxembourg law of 12 July 2003 on alternative investment fund managers,

The Company is not the alternative investment fund manager of the fund and has appointed BlackRock Asset
Management Ireland Limited {the “AIFM”} to perform portfolio and risk management functions for the fund
within the meaning of the AIFMD. The AIFM is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland.

1 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRSs as approved by the EU and
under historical cost accounting rules, except for the revaluation of any financial instruments held at fair value,
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets,

Consideration of climate risk

As discussed in the Directors’ report the Company reviews and manages climate related risks. In preparing the
financial statements, the directors have considered the implications of climate related risk and have conclueded
that there has been no material impact identified on the Anancial reporting judgements and estimate or on the
valuation of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Page 17
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern
The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position, are set out in the Directors’ Report along with principal risks and uncertainties,

In assessing the going concern status, the directors have taken inte account various factors, including the
financial position of the Company and in particular the significant net cash position. The Company has, at the
date of this report, sufficient existing finances available for its estimated requirements for the next 12 months,
This, together with its proven ability (o generate cash from operations, provides the directors with the
confidence that the Company 15 well placed to managze its business risks successtfully.

After making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being at least 12 months from the date
of this report, Accordingly, they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Directors’ Report and

financial statements.

Changes in accounting standards

New stamdards, interprefations and amendments adopted

Mone of the standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{"IASB") which are effective for the first time from | January 2024 have had a material effect on the financial
slalements.

New standards, interprelations and amendments not yel adopied

With the exception of IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, none of the standards,
interpretations and amendments issued by the IASE which are effective for periods beginning after 1 January
2024 and which have not been adopted carly are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements,

IFRS 18 is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2027, It aims to improve communication and
comparability in financial statements, The adoption of IFRS 18 will not change the recognition or measumement
plicies of the Company, but will result in changes 1o the presentation and disclosure of information in the
primary financial statements and the nofes to the financial statements. The impact is currently being assessed.

Revenue recognition
Recognition

The Company eams revenue from the provision of services relating o investment management and
administration fees, and distribution fees, Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services 1o
customers, i.e. when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, in an amount that reflects consideration 1o
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services (the "transaction price”). The Company
enters o contracts that can include multiple services and, in certain instances, mav charge a unitary fee o
cover these services, Such fees are accounted for separately if they are determined to be distinet. Consideration
for ihe Company's services is generally in ithe form of variable consideration because the amouni of fees is
subject to market conditions that are outside the Company's influence. The Company includes variable
consideration as part of its wransaction price when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
i.e. when the associated uncertainty is resolved. For some contracts with customers, the Company involves third
parties and related parties in providing services fo the customer, Generally, the Company is deemed to be the
principal in these arrangements because the Company controls the promised services before they are transferred
to customers, and accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs,

Page 18
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Fee arrangements
Revenue from the provision of services comprises:

*  Investment management and administration fees: Fees are recognised as the services are performed over
time, Such fees are primarily based on agreed-upon percentages of net asset value, AUM or committed
capital, These fees are affected by changes in net asset value, AUM or committed capital, including market
appreciation of depreciation, foreign exchange translation and net inflows of outflows, Investment
management and administration fees for investment funds are shown net of fees waived pursuant to
coniraciual expense limitations of the funds or voluniary waivers, Fees are generally invoiced monihly in
ATTEIrs.

*  Distribution fees: The Company accounts for fund distribution services and sharelolder servicing as distinet
services, separate from fund management services, because customers can benefit from each of the services
o their own and because the services are separately identifiable (that is, the nature of the promised services
is to transfer cach service individually). The Company records distribution fee revenue for serving as the
principal underwriter and/or disiributor for certain mutual funds that it manages. Distribution fees are
generally based on met asset values and are recognized when the services are performed and the amoumt is
knewn, Consequemtly, a portion of the distribution fees recognised by the Company may be related 1o the
services performed in prior periods that met the recognition ¢riteria in the current period. The Company
recognises ongoing sharcholder servicing foe revenue when and as shareholder services are performed over
time, The Company contracts with third parties for various fund distribution services and sharcholder
servicing to be performed on its behalf, These arrangements are generally priced as a portion of the fee paid
to the Company by the fund or as an agreed-upon percentage of net asset value, The Company presents its
distribution fees and distribution and servicing costs incurred on a gross basis as it is deemed o be the
principal in such transactions.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
The financial statements are presented in US dollar, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (Foreign currencies) are recognised al
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of financial position date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Non-monetary items carried a1 fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences on non-monetary
items, measured atl fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Tax
Inecane 1% expense represents the suim of the tax currently pavable,

The curreni income tax charge is calculated on the basis of max rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments
Recognivion and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised on the trade date when the Company becomes panty to
ile contraciual provisions.

Financial asseis are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire, or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired,

Classiffcarion and initial megsarement of financlal assets

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for ransaction costs (where applicable), except
for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing compenent which are measered at ransaction
price.

Financial assets are clussified and subsequently measured, based on business model and contractual cash flow
characteristics, at; amorised cost; FVTPL,

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the income statement are presented
within finance costs, finance income or net gains or losses on derivative financial instruments, except for
impairment of trade receivables which is presented within administrative expenses.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on financial assets at amortised cost are presemted in the income
statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 5, For financial assets at FVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fur value gains or losses and 15 recognised i the income statenent
within net gains{losses) on derivative financial instruments.

Subseqirent measurement of fimarcial assels

Financial assels ol amortised cosi

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when their contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest and they are held within a business model designed 10 hold the asset and collect its cash
flows (and are not designated as FYTPL).

The Company”s cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and income is recognised on this basis,

Fimarciol assers af fale valne throngh profin or foss

Financial assets that are held other than “hold 1o collect’ or ‘hold 1o collect and sell” are categorised a1 FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest are accounted for at FYTPL.

The Company has not designated any amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
{"FVTOCI) financial assets at FVTPL.

Tmprairnrent of fimancial asseis
Al debt-type financial assets nod measured a1 FVTPL are assessed for impairment at each reporting date using a
forward-looking approach by identifying expected credit losses ("ECLs").

Impaimment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified approach using the lifetime
ECLs and the single loss-rate approach,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

2 Accounting policies (continued)

For other financial assets, where credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, twelve
month ECLs are recognised, For those where credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECLs are
recognised.

For assets held at amortised cost any ECL is recognised in the income statement with a corresponding
adjusiment (o the asset’s carrving value through a provision account, For assets held at FYTOCL, the loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and acouwmulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

Classiffcation and measwrenent of fnancial fiabilities
Financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value and, where applicable, adjusted for fransaction costs
unless designated at FYTPL.

Subsequently, Nnancial liabilities are measured at amonised cost using the effective interest method except for
contingent consideration acquired in a business combination, held for trading labilities (including derivatives)
and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the
inCome statement.

The Company's fnancial liabilites at amortised cost are trade and other pavables. The Company has naot
designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL,

In the income statement interest-related charges are included within finance costs.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on financial labilities at amortised cost are presented in the income
statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 5,

Dherivative fimarmcial insiramenis

The Company's derivative Nnancial instruments, forwards and foreign exchange are measured at FYTPL. In the
statement of financial position, derivative financial instruments with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are
included as assets and derivative financial instruments with negative Fair values (unrealised losses) are included
as liabilities.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments 0 economically hedge risk associated with foreign
exchange movemenis and market price exposure with respect to certain seed invesiments, It is not the
Company's policy o trade in derivative instruments and hedge accounting is not applied.

Eqguity instrinents

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, The
Companv's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Iin the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described above, the directors are required 1o
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the camying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from oiher sources, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considerad to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Thesze estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Inconne faves

The Company is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions and judgement is required in determining the
provision for tax. During the ordinary course of business, there are many ransactions for which the ultimate 1ax
determination is wnceriain. It is not probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
Company measures the effect of the uncertainty using either the most likely amount or expected value method,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of uncertainty. To the extent that the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expense in the period inwhich such determination is made.

Full details are s¢1 out in note §,

4 Hevenue

2024 2023

5 0iHy 5 000
Investment management and distribution fees 21,747 17.714
Amnalysis by investment siyle 2024 2023

£ 000 £ 0
Cash managemient 14,375 10,294
Equity 451 370
Fixed income 2,312 2,463
Multi-asset 4.60% 4.587

21,747 17.714

Contract assets

Contract assets relate to the Company's conditional nights to consideration for services, primarily relating to
accrued income for unbilled services, These are disclosed as accrued income in note 11,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

5 Operating profit
Arrived at after charging

2024 2023
S 000 S 000
Foreign exchange (losses)gains (23} 7

6 Directors” remuneration

The emaluments paid to directors of the Company have been omitted in compliance with Article 650 11180(2) of
the Company Law.,

T Auditor's remuneration

024 nzi
% 00Wd %
Audit of the financial statements 43 43

§  Income tax

The Company iz subject to Luxembourg corporale income tax, municipal business tax and net wealth tax, The
charge allocated to the Company as part of the fiscal unity to which it forms a part of, representing corporate
income tax, municipal business tax and net wealth tax is shown below:

2024 023
S 0y 5000
Current tavation
Luxembourg corporation tax mn7 a3
Luxembourg corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods 3 (2}
Total current income tax 200 a3

The tax on profit before tax for the period is higher than (2023: lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax
in Luxembourg of 24.94% (2023: 24.94%).
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

& Income tax (continued)

2023
5000

468

117

(3

(21}

224
5 000
Profit before tax 668
Corporation tax at standard rate 167
Inereasef{decrease) in current tax from adjustment in respect of prior
periods 3
Increase/{decrease) in current tax from unrecognised foreign exchange
wains or losses from tax statement of financial position revaluation ik
Total tax charge 2

3

The Company is within the scope of the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD")
Pillar Two model rules {the Global Anti-Base Erosion Rules, or "GleBE™). Pillar Two legislation came into
effect on 1st January 2024 in Luxembourg, the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated and operates.

Under the Pillar Two legislation, a company may be liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between its

GloBE effective tax rate per junsdiction and the 1 5% minimum rate,

The Pillar Two current tax expense for the Company for the vear was nil (2023: nil). The Company applics the
exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two

income taxes, as provided in the amendments to LAS 12 ssued in May 2023,

9 Financial assets

31 December
2023
% 0

BE1

31 December
2023
5000

B42
39

31 December
2024
S (W)
Non-current finmancial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 923
Movement in non-current flinancial assets
31 December
2024
RRLCH
Cost
At January 881
Additions 42
Al 31 December 923

B

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss represent the Company's holdings in the BlackRock Glebal
Investment Serics Super Money Market Fund, as outlined in note 10, Additions represent reinvested

distributions,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

10 Interests in unconsolidated structured entitics

The AUM of the Company as at 31 December 2024 was 53, 8bm (2023; §3.4bn),

The Company manages. investment funds which are considered to be structured entities within the definition of
IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’, Structured entities are not consolidated as the Company does
not have "control” as defined under IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements’. The Company receives an
interest in these unconsolidated structured entities through the receipt of management fees. The unconsolidated
structured entities are constituted as open-ended and ¢losed-ended investment companies,

The unconsolidated structured entities have various investment objectives and policies and are subject 1o the
terms and conditions of their respective offering documentation. However, all unconsolidated structured entities
invest capital primarily from third-party investors in a portfolio of assets in order to provide a return to those
investors from capital appreciation of those assets, income from those assets, or both. Accordingly, they are
suscepltible o market price risk arising from uncenainties about future values of the assets they hold.

The unconsolidated structured entities are financed through equity capital provided by investors, Additionally,
the Company holds an investment of 923,394 units (2023: 880,969) in BlackRock Global Investmem Series
Super Money Market Fund with a value of 8923k (2023: $881k). Sec note 9 for details.

The fees received during the vear to 31 December 2024, in relation to the above, were 521,747k (2023:
S17,714k), The carrying value on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 is 38,053k (2023:
4,550k}, as represented by acerued income.

Maxinmm exposure i loss
The Company's maximum exposure fo loss associated with its interest in these unconsolidated structured entities
is limited 1o the carrying amounts shown above,

Finarncial support
The Company has not provided financial support to any of its unconsolidated structured entities during the year,
and has no contraciual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the future,

(hher informiation
There are no differences to the economic or voting rights attaching to the equity held by the Company from

those held by ather investors, There are no liquidity arangements, guarantees or other commitments that may
affect the fair value or risk of the Company's interest in the unconsolidated structured entities.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

11 Trade and other receivables

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

S Dy 5 D
Amounts due from group companies 428 4035
Accrued income 8,053 4,550
Prepavments G5 34

8,544 4,58

The Company’s exposure o credit and market risks relating to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note
17.

12 Share capital

Allatted, called up and fully paid shares

31 December 31 December

2024 223

M, (00 S 000 Mo, DD S 00

Ordinary shares of $12.50 each 40 500 4i¥ 500

13 Other reserves

Legal reserve

Luxembourg companics are required o appropriate o the legal reserve a minimum of 3% of the annual net
income, after deducting any losses brought forward, until such reserve equals 10%4 of subseribed capital.

This reserve may not be distributed. in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during the life of the Company.

Mo allocations were made in 2023 or 2024 as the maximum 550k had already been reached. This reserve is
included az other reserves in the statement of financial position.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2024

13 Other reserves (continued)

Net wealth tax reserve

The members” general meeting has ratified the creation of a special net wealth tax reserve inoorder to reduce the
net wealth fax pavable by the Company, This special reserve amounis to five times the envisaged net wealth tax
credit. This special met wealth tax reserve has to remain unavailable for distribution for five vears o take
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liability. This reserve is included as other reserves in the statement
of financial position,

During the vear, amounts totalling SE7K (2023: 598K) were allocated to the net wealth tax reserve,

Additionally, amounts totalling Snil (2023: 5128k) relating to amounts transferred in prior years were released
from the net wealth tax reserve 1o retained camings.

The net wealth tax reserve at 31 December 2024 amounted 1o 3236k (2023 S149K).

14 Trade and other pavables
31 December 31 December

1024 2023

5 00 5000
Accrued expenses 52 &35
Amounts due (o group companics 7,344 3,336

7,396 3421

Adl amounts due 1o group companies are unsecured, interest free and repayvable on demand.

The Company's exposure 1o market and liquidity risks related 1o trade and other payables is disclosed in note 17.

15 Fair value measurement

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics are determined as follows:

Level 1 - fair value measurement derived from guoted prices (unadjusted) in active market prices for identical
assels or liabilities.

Level 2 - fair value measurement derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or linbility, either directly (i.e. as price) or indinectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Lewvel 3 - fair valug measurement derived from unohservable inpats for the asset or liability,

The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and lizhilities.
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15 Fair value measurement (continued)

Assets measured at fair value

2024
Level 2 Total
5 00 5000
Equity instruments 923 O3
Assets measured at fair value
2023
Level 2 Total
5 00 5000
Equity instruments 881 Bl

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the vear,

16 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and financial and non-financial liabilities

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities by accounting categorisation for the vear ending 31
December 2024 was as follows:

Financial assets  Financial assets
& liahilities at & liahilities at

amortised cost FVTPL
- Mandatory - Mandatory
S 0o S 0D
Assets
Non-current assets
Other non-current financial assets = [k
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.899 -
Trade and other receivables 428 -
Total assets 2,327 923
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7,396 -
Todal liabilities 7,396 -
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16 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and financial and non-financial  liabilities

(contimued)

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities by accounting categorisation for the vear ending 31

December 2023 was as follows:

Assets

Non-current assets
Other non-curvent financial assets

Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Tal assets
Linbilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Teal liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value
For details of the fair value hierarchy and valuation methods and assumplions refer 1o note 15,

Fimancial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial assets
& liabilities at

Financial asscis
& liabilities at

amortised cost FVTFL
- Mandatory - Mandatory
S 000 S 00
Bl
1,008
405
1,473 BE1
3,421
3.421

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
irade and other pavables approximates their value after taking into account ECLs. At the siatement of financial
position date, no allowance has been recoznised for impaimment of trade and other receivables as ECLs are

considered to be immaterial.
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17 Financial risk review

This note presents information about the Company 's exposure to financial risks and management of capital.

Credit risk and impairment

Credit risk arises in relation 10 trade receivables, surplus cash held in bank aceounts oF held on aceount with
other BlackRock group companics as part of normal treasury operations, and other asset investments. The risk
of default in relation io irade receivables arising from fee income receivables is considered low and ithe
Company minimises exposure to credit risk with respect to trade receivables by actively pursuing settlement of
outstanding management fee invoices within the terms and conditions of the underlying agreement,
Intercompany balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis,

Muost receivables that are overdue are not considered 1o be impaired. A receivable will nod be impaired unless
the expected cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate, are less than the carmmying value. For
trade receivables, the Company adopts the simplified single loss rate approach to determine its average
historical loss rate, building inte this calculation future events and the likelihood that debt will be recovered in
ihe future. The resuliing ECL rate is immaterial io the Company and no allowance has been recognised.

The Company applies a practical expedient 1o its assessment of ECLs for intercompany receivables, Given the
lack of imtercompany defaulis in the past and fulure projected results, the Company does nol propose
recognising an ECL allowance on any of its intercompany positions. The ECLs on other receivables are
considered (o be immaterial and no allowance has been recognised in the financial statements,

The carrying amount of the financial assets disclosed in note 16 represenis the Company's maximum exposure
1o credit risk as no collateral or credit enhancements are held.

The following tables summarise the credit risk exposure of the Company based on S&P Global's credit ratings:

A-1
000

At 31 December 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 1,890
A-1
< D00

At 31 December 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 1,05

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Company's capital and'or earnings may be impacted by changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and market prices.
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17 Financial risk review {(continued )

Forefgn exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where the Company’s foreign currency asseis are mot maiched by liabilities
denominated in the =ame currency. In addition, foreign exchange exposures arise on a transactional basis largely
in relation to fee income which is denominated in non-functional currencies. The Company derives revenues
from investment manasement and distribution fees denominated in US dollar. Expenses are mainly denominated
in Euro and as a consequence the Company™s revenucs may fluctuate as a result of Euro and US dollar exchange
Movements,

Foreign currency exposures are monitored regularly and minimised, Foreign curmency exposures that arise in
relation to non-operational ftems are usually large in nature and are managed on a case-by-case basis. Foreign
curvency exposures relating to infercompany pavables and receivables with other BlackRock group entities are
managed wilising foreign exchange forward contracts,

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analvsis covers the financial instruments at each of the statememt of Anancial position dates and
assumes changes in market variables, It should however be noted that due to the inherent uncertainty in the
world of fnamcial markets the assumptions made may differ signifieantly from the actual outcome particularly
as market risks tend to be interdependent and are therefore unlikely to move in isolation.

Euro exchange rates are assumed to increase or decrease by 2080, 20% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting  foreign currency risk intemally 1o key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

If the Euro exchange rate increased by 20%, profit and equity would increase by S4k.
If the Euro exchange rate decreased by 20%, profit and equity would decrease by Sok.

18 Related pariy transactions

The transactions with related parties that occurred during the year related to service charges with other entities
controlled by the ultimate parent undertaking,
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18 Relwted party transactions (continued )

Income and receivables from related parties

Fellow

subsidiaries

2024 5 000
Amounts receivable from related party 428

Fellow

subsidiaries

2023 S 00
Amounts receivable from related party 354

Expenditure with and payables to related parties

Fellow

subsidiarics

2024 S 00
Outsourced AIFM services and refrocessions 20,009
Other expenses 3
21,073

Amounts payable to related party 7.344

Fellow

subsidiaries

2023 5 0040
Outsourced AIFM services and refrocessions 17,143
Onher expenses 92
17,233

Amounts pavable to related party 3,336

There were no loans to any related parties during the period,

19 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The Company’s immediate holding company is BlackRock Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch, The ultimate
parent company and controlling party is BlackRock, Inc., a company incorporated in the State of Delaware in
the United States of America. The parent company of the largest and smallest group that includes the Company
and for which group asccounts are prepared 15 BlackRock, lne, Copies of the group financial statements ane
available upon request from the Investor Relations website at www.blackrock.com or requests may be addressed
io Invesior Relations at 50 Hudson Yards, Mew York, NY 10035, USA or by email at invrel@blackrock.com.
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¢!
BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
2024 12 125,001 2,427
2025
194.12
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.
(¢
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
12 474 95 8,331
1988
(€
State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
2025 3,882,156,017 6,350 426
2025 30
163.57
10
4

J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch
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2025
46,864 6,655

Societas Europaea

Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, BaFin

€] BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1.)

2024 12 2,623,500 2,913

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

2024 12 94 182 4,728

@

2025 405
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G

2025 125,167
©

2025 5,251
(10

2025 6,695
11

2025 2,280
(12

2025 6,000
(13

2025 3,307
(14

2025 3,000
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(15

2025 1,250
(16

2025 54,323
Q17

2025 3,000
(18

2025 5,869
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BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
2
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.
3
State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
(
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(b
(
(
(
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4

J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch

€ BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1I.

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

BlackRock (Channel Islands)
Limited 1972 10

7
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1915 1915 10
1993 1993
2002 2002 12 20
2007 2007 13
2010 2010 12 17
2013 2013 12
2016 2016 23
@)
@)
©)
2013 39
2011
2011 61
2011
2009
1993
2010
2010
1 2004 2 2007 3 2010 4 2013
5 2016 2023 21

2009 13 2009 65
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1959 2025 30 1,112 2010
9,908 7,400

1959 1960 Pan-
Holding Selected Risks Investments

Commonwealth and European Investment Trust

1967 1968
United States Trust Investment Fund
2025 30 1,789 172 société
d 7 investissement en capital a risque 5,160 9,300
2025 30 6,188 8,500

https://www.cssf. lu/fr/Document/principales-statistiques-concernant-les-opc-avril-2025/

1965 19 1972 12 22

1983 20 1998 22
30

1999 1998 12 23
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2.1.5. 2003 22 03 88 2002
2010
a) 20002 41 2010 41
20
b) 20
c) 25
d) 2002 2010
2.1.6. 2010
fonds commun de placement
2010 1915
2.2.
2010
2023 2010 174 2002 129
2003 14
2.2.1.
2010 41
1134 1710 1779 1787 1984

2010
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°
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—-2007 07
08 380
85 611 21
2011 2010
10 049
2010 2010 43 2010
No.10 04 2022 27 No.22 05
2010 2010 44 2010 12 20
No.10 05
No.10
2011 30 11 512
11 512 18 698
12 540
22 14 591
2014 30 14 592
2014 937 13 559
2012 832
14 592
2015 2365
2014 12 14 598
2015
15 609
2015 12 15 627
2015 12 28 15 631
2010
2016 10 11 16 644 16 644 2018
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e 2004 11 12
2010
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° 2020 12
18 20 764
° 12 2021 13
21 770
° 35
36 1952 2021 30 21 779
° 2021 12 22
21 788
° 2021 12 22
21 789 23 839
°
2021 12 22 21 790
° 2019 1156
34 45 1272 2019 20
No 345 2013 No 346 2013
No 1286 2014 2022 31 22 795
° 2022 22
22 805
° 2022 22 22 806
°
2019 02
°
2022 12 22 810
° 2022 16 22 811
°
2022 10 27
22 822 22 822
2024
° 2023 16 23 833
° 2023 16
23 835
° 2023 11 23 844
°
2023 12 23 846

2008 2010
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2011 30
11 512 18 698
2011 12 31
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2010
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1991 21 91 75
05 177 18 697 21 790 22 811
02 80
2.2.1.2.
2010 15
2010 16
2010 16 15
2.2.1.2.1. 2010 16
125 125 126 16
2010 2010 125 2010 125

2010 125
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund””)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the statement
of investments and other net assets as at 31 January 2024 and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2024, and of the
results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the Financial
Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory
requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is
responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with 1SAs as adopted for

Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the Fund"s
Management Company .
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Independent Auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Virginie NG Wing Lit - Boulot, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 April 2024
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To the Unitholders

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund~”)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the statement
of investments and other net assets as at 31 January 2025 and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2025, and of the
results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our report of the Independent Auditor thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Independent Auditor that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the Fund"s
Management Company.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the
Independent Auditor to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the Independent Auditor. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Jean-Philippe Bachelet, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 April 2025
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To the sole Shareholder of

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

35a, avenue John F. Kennedy

L - 1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. (the
"Company'), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier™ (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the "Responsibilities of the "réviseur d"entreprises agréé"
for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are also independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

264/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our report of the "réviseur d"entreprises agréé" thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the "réviseur d"entreprises agréé" for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of the "réviseur d"entreprises agréé" that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the "réviseur d"entreprises agréé" to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Director®s report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Alberto Maria Meriggio, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 April 2025
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